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          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  Good morning. Welcome. Welcome to our hearing this

          4  morning. It's a pleasure to have all of you with us.

          5  Before we start, I guess I'd just like to -- I guess

          6  it's appropriate for us to make mention and

          7  recognize, somber the fact that our 40th President

          8  Ronald Reagan is laying in state at this moment, and

          9  I wanted to mention that on the record. Why don't we

         10  just have a moment of silence for the memory of

         11  Ronald Reagan.

         12                 (Moment of Silence observed.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. It

         14  was quite a stirring ceremony on TV yesterday. I'm

         15  sure many of you saw it. Thank you.

         16                 Good morning. I'm Council Member Jim

         17  Gennaro. I'm Chair of the New York City Council

         18  Committee on Environmental Protection. I'd like to

         19  welcome you to this hearing. Today, the Committee,

         20  as you know, with hear testimony on Intro. 81, which

         21  seeks to prohibit the sale and installation of after

         22  market audible motor vehicle alarms in New York

         23  City.

         24                 And Resolution 365, which calls upon

         25  the State Legislature to amend the State Insurance
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          2  Laws to authorize insurers to give a discount only

          3  to policy holders with silent anti-theft devices.

          4                 New York City may be one of the

          5  world's noisiest cities, with its screeching subway

          6  cars, to honking taxicabs, the Blooming Jet Engine,

          7  to shrieking car alarms. New York is inundated with

          8  noise, which poses terrible quality of life and

          9  health concerns.

         10                 In short, there is a reason why New

         11  York City is a city that never sleeps. There are too

         12  many car alarms shrieking all the time. Hopefully

         13  we'll be able to do something to take care of that

         14  situation.

         15                 In 1972, New York City became one of

         16  the first cities in the nation to adopt a

         17  comprehensive noise control code. This pioneering

         18  effort sought to eradicate noises as a menace to

         19  public health, comfort, convenience, safety, welfare

         20  and prosperity of the people of this City.

         21                 On Monday Mayor Bloomberg released

         22  his long awaited proposal to amend this code. The

         23  Speaker, Council Member Vallone and myself

         24  participated in the press conference to announce

         25  this proposal.
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          2                 We look forward to working with the

          3  Administration and the City's DEP, and the Police

          4  Department, to make sure that we get to the goal of

          5  a quieter city and have that dream come to fruition.

          6                 In addition, other steps should be

          7  taken now to address specific sources of noise where

          8  we are able to, and Intro. 81 is an important step

          9  forward in that direction.

         10                 The Mayor's noise proposal indicates

         11  that car alarms, recognizes them as a problem, and

         12  indicates that they certainly need further study.

         13                 We quite agree, and we believe that

         14  Intro. 81 will launch us down that path.

         15                 Intro. 81 seeks to decrease noise

         16  from disturbing car alarms by banning the sale and

         17  installation of all after market models. A laudable

         18  objective, but legislation that I'm currently not a

         19  sponsor of, in that I'm somewhat uncomfortable with

         20  some of the elements of Intro. 81 that will actually

         21  ban a legal product.

         22                 As many of you know, car alarms are

         23  in different categories. There are those that have

         24  attributes that are illegal, and those that have

         25  attributes that are not legal.
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          2                 The Council, in 1993, through Local

          3  Law 110 of 1993 made certain kinds of car alarms,

          4  and certain kinds of car alarm features illegal, and

          5  that we indicated then, and it is now the law that

          6  alarms must be capable of terminating after three

          7  minutes of activation. No alarm shall be capable of

          8  being activated except through direct physical

          9  contact, or through the use of an individual remote

         10  activation device, and cars cannot have an audible

         11  status indicator which would chirp to let people

         12  know that it's in operation, it chirps all through

         13  the night.

         14                 And, so, you know, we have sort of

         15  like the good list of alarms and bad list of alarms,

         16  but unfortunately, in 72 percent of the shops in New

         17  York City you can still buy alarms that have illegal

         18  features. And, so, one compelling, one piece of

         19  compelling logic that I see would be to make car

         20  alarms that are illegal for use in New York City not

         21  able to be sold to cars that are registered in New

         22  York City. That way we would take which is now the

         23  law of the people who own and operate these devices,

         24  and apply the same law to those that sell, and

         25  install.
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          2                 However, we always could take a look

          3  at what is illegal and what is an illegal car alarm

          4  and sort of, you know, ratchet up that definition

          5  and perhaps make more features illegal or whatever,

          6  so as you can see, this is -- you know, I've given a

          7  lot of thought to this, Chairman Liu has given a lot

          8  of thought to this, and we're launching down this

          9  path to figure out what we can do to silence car

         10  alarms, because I think we have an obligation to the

         11  City of New York to do whatever we can to silence

         12  these alarms that act inappropriately and go off all

         13  the time and don't really deter crime.

         14                 And, so, I get so wrapped up in my

         15  own rhetoric here, see, I'm not following. See, I

         16  should be quieter, right?

         17                 Therefore, I'm hoping to see this

         18  bill move in the direction of banning owners alarms

         19  that do not comply with current New York City law,

         20  which requires that car alarms terminate within

         21  three minutes, and the cable will be inactivated

         22  only through direct physical contact or with a

         23  remote activation device.

         24                 Passing such a law would be a logical

         25  next step and would greatly compliment the current
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          2  car alarm restrictions in New York City and quiet

          3  the most egregious car alarm.

          4                 Today we will hear from very

          5  knowledgeable individuals on the issue of car alarms

          6  who can help the Council determine what effective

          7  reasonable steps can be taken to lessen the

          8  disturbing impact of these devices, and to that end,

          9  any legislation we consider must be technically

         10  possible and practically enforceable. And it's

         11  unfortunate, I believe, that we have come to a state

         12  of affairs in New York City where this is unique New

         13  York phenomenon of screeching car alarms that we all

         14  just kind of shrugg and figure that there's nothing

         15  we can do about it, and sometimes, you know, the

         16  more we study a comprehensive solution to car

         17  alarms, seems to become more elusive. But speaking

         18  for myself and I know on behalf of Chairman Liu, we

         19  are dedicated to do whatever we can to rid the City

         20  of the scourge of endless shrieking car alarms.

         21                 Before I call my first witness for

         22  the hearing, representatives from the DEP and the

         23  New York City Police Department, I would like to

         24  give Council Member John Liu and Eva Moskowitz, if

         25  she's here, an opportunity to make opening remarks.
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          2                 Before I turn it over John, I wish to

          3  thank John for his leadership. He's been a real

          4  champion on this issue. He's had many meetings with

          5  me, many meetings with advocates, many meetings with

          6  the police and others, and it's only through his

          7  commitment and dedication to ridding the City of

          8  this scourge that we are here today. We are here

          9  today because of John and I thank him for his

         10  leadership.

         11                 I also wish to thank the staff of the

         12  City Council, who worked long and hard to make this

         13  hearing come to pass, Donna DeCostanzo; Richard

         14  Colon; Marcel Van Ooyen; Maria Alvarado; my own

         15  staff, Corine Jean-Pierre, Brittany Marioti, of

         16  course, my Chief of Staff Peter Washburn; and as

         17  always, we were helped out by Ms. Manning, from the

         18  Mayor's Office, who always does such a good job

         19  helping us to get these hearings up and running.

         20                 With that said, Donna tells me that

         21  we're supposed to surrender this room at 1:00 p.m.,

         22  so I'll ask people to be brief, having been brief

         23  myself, and with that I'm privileged to turn this

         24  over for an opening statement to Transportation

         25  Committee Chairman John Liu.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman. And I want to thank you for your

          4  leadership in convening this hearing on a topic that

          5  is most important to many New Yorkers.

          6                 I certainly commend you and thank you

          7  for the time you've taken to help study this issue.

          8  It is a complicated issue, although it seems

          9  relatively simple on the surface.

         10                 I want to thank my colleague Eva

         11  Moskowitz and our Speaker Gifford Miller, and our

         12  other colleagues who have signed onto this bill for

         13  their support and their concern for keeping as much

         14  peace and quiet available for New Yorkers.

         15                 Let's talk a little bit about car

         16  alarms. We're talking about audible car alarms. Car

         17  alarms that shriek, sometimes endlessly, sometimes

         18  even three minutes sounds -- sometimes even three

         19  minutes is an eternity for people who are trying to

         20  get some sleep in the middle of the night.

         21                 When a car alarm goes off in New York

         22  City, people don't rush to the phone and call the

         23  cops and tell the cops that there is an autotheft in

         24  progress. People don't even look out the window to

         25  see what's happening with a blaring car alarm.
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          2                 I think the most that people do is

          3  simply curse at the owner of that car that is waking

          4  up everybody in the neighborhood.

          5                 There is no proof whatsoever that

          6  audible car alarms deter autotheft. And yet, noise

          7  complaints being the number one complaints put into

          8  3-1-1 and various other forms of government

          9  interface, and car alarm complaints being the number

         10  one source of those noise complaints, I think it's

         11  obvious that there are some very detrimental impacts

         12  that audible car alarms have on New York City

         13  residents.

         14                 No demonstrable benefit, and, yet, a

         15  very clear detriment to New Yorkers.

         16                 That is why we are putting this bill

         17  in for consideration by the City Council, by this

         18  Committee under the leadership of Jim Gennaro, and

         19  of all New Yorkers to consider. We need some peace

         20  and quiet.

         21                 Even after this bill moves forward,

         22  which will ban the sale and installation of car

         23  alarms prospectively, there are still things that we

         24  need to change, especially with regard to the New

         25  York City Noise Code. I hope to be able to work with
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          2  this Committee, Mr. Chairman, on addressing those

          3  issues as well, so that we can further make this

          4  City more livable.

          5                 I commend the Bloomberg

          6  Administration for the announcements earlier this

          7  week that address various sources of noise in this

          8  City. I wish that it had some provision about car

          9  alarms, and I hope that the Administration will work

         10  with us in the Council to address this, what

         11  Chairman Gennaro called the "scourge" of shrieking

         12  car alarms. It is a real problem, and we need

         13  solutions now.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Council Member Liu.

         17                 Before I call our first witness, I

         18  will recognize that we are joined by Council Member

         19  Vallone, also a champion on noise reduction, and you

         20  joined us on Monday.

         21                 Do you want to make a statement?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I recognize

         24  Council Member Vallone for a statement.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would like to
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          2  support John Liu's statement. As Chair of Public

          3  Safety, I concur that any deterrent effect that

          4  these car alarms may have had in the past has been

          5  lost completely, and now our major concern is

          6  quality of life. I support both of these bills, any

          7  bill that eliminates that somehow stops or mitigates

          8  the sale or possession of car alarms I am in favor

          9  of, and I support Chairman Gennaro and Council

         10  Member Liu in their efforts.

         11                 I would also like to say I've been

         12  privileged to work with Mr. Avaltroni in the

         13  Administration, with the Noise Code that was

         14  introduced just this week, you're well aware that

         15  the City's Administration Noise Code took, took some

         16  elements of the City Council's, previously

         17  introduced laws, such as the audible noise standard

         18  and incorporated them, which is the way we need to

         19  work together.

         20                 I had introduced a bill with James

         21  Sanders regarding audible noise standard, we held

         22  off on that because you explained you were working

         23  on it, and we like the results, the final results.

         24                 We hope to work with you on this

         25  issue also, because as Mr. Liu just said, we had
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          2  hoped to see something to do with car alarms in your

          3  bill, unfortunately it's not there. But these car

          4  alarms, people do look out the window, Council

          5  Member Liu, they look out the window to find out who

          6  the owner is so they can have a little talk with the

          7  owner the next morning, not to find out -- that's

          8  what I do, not to find out who is breaking into

          9  anybody's car.

         10                 So, anything we can do to help the

         11  people in New York City we intend to do, and we hope

         12  to work with the administration on this.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         15  Council Member Liu.

         16                 We are joined by Council Member

         17  Lopez.

         18                 Thank you, Peter, also for setting up

         19  my introduction of Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni.

         20                 As you said, certainly Mr. Avaltroni

         21  is one of the architects of the Mayor's

         22  comprehensive new introduction proposal, and we

         23  thank you for your dedicated service, particularly

         24  on this most important issue, and all the months and

         25  months of effort that you and your staff have put
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          2  into putting this proposal on the table so the

          3  Council could appropriately consider it.

          4                 And, so, I welcome you, Deputy

          5  Commissioner Avaltroni. It's a pleasure to have you

          6  here, as always. And we're also joined by Deputy

          7  Inspector Howard Lawrence, NYPD Auto Crime Division.

          8                 Thank you, both, for being here. We

          9  appreciate your attendance here today. We look

         10  forward to your testimony, and I call upon the

         11  Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, to give

         12  the oath, after which you can proceed with your good

         13  testimony in whatever order you wish to proceed.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         15  right hands.

         16                 In the testimony that you are about

         17  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         18  the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         20  will.

         21                 MR. LAWRENCE: I do.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Good

         24  morning, Mr. Chairman, Committee members. It's a

         25  pleasure to come before you, and I appreciate your
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          2  gracious comments.

          3                 I'm Bob Avaltroni, Deputy

          4  Commissioner Environmental Protection, and on behalf

          5  of Commissioner Ward, thank you for this opportunity

          6  to address the Committee on the subject of audible

          7  car alarms.

          8                 The New York City DEP is proud of its

          9  long effort to improve the quality of life for all

         10  New Yorkers by enforcing and overhauling the Noise

         11  Code in Title 24 of the New York City Administrative

         12  Code.

         13                 The issue of noise in New York is a

         14  complex one. In a City of more than 9 million people

         15  with hundreds of diverse and vibrant neighborhoods,

         16  and various lifestyles, finding a prudent, yet

         17  effective way of managing the noise from car alarms

         18  is an issue this Administration, as you do, take

         19  very seriously.

         20                 As you know, the Mayor, as you

         21  suggested, has introduced a revised noise code that

         22  is sensible, and in our minds strikes a balance of

         23  creating a quieter environment, without compromising

         24  our great City's vibrancy.

         25                 With respect to car alarms, we have
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          2  proposed a collaborative study involving, but not

          3  limited to, the NYPD and DEP to study noise

          4  abatement strategies and techniques that will reduce

          5  the noise of car alarms without compromising auto

          6  crime reductions or other crime reductions, in fact.

          7                 We look forward to working with the

          8  Council, as we have in the past, to make this

          9  comprehensive noise code a reality, so all New

         10  Yorkers will benefit from this major quality of life

         11  initiative.

         12                 I thank you very much again, and I

         13  will be glad to answer any questions you might have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. What

         15  we'll do is we'll hear the testimony of Deputy

         16  Inspector Lawrence before we ask questions of both

         17  of you.

         18                 Inspector, thank you.

         19                 MR. LAWRENCE: Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman, and members of the Council.

         21                 I'm Deputy Inspector Howard Lawrence,

         22  Commanding Officer of the NYPD's AutoCrime Division.

         23  On behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond W. Kelly,

         24  and Chief of Organized Crime Control Douglas

         25  Zeigler. I would like to thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to discuss Intro. 81.

          3                 We understand the frustration that

          4  has led to the introduction of the bill before you.

          5  But we are concerned that this bill would chill the

          6  ability of vehicle owners to protect their property

          7  in New York City. The audible vehicle alarm is one

          8  of many measures available to vehicle owners to

          9  prevent theft of the vehicle, as well as items

         10  inside. It is one element of a continuum of auto

         11  theft prevention measures, starting with the

         12  simplest, simply locking the key, and culminating in

         13  an expensive and sophisticated vehicle shutdown

         14  system. We recommend members of the public utilize

         15  as many measures as they can in order to avoid being

         16  the victims of crime, since there is a wide variety

         17  of criminal techniques as there are measures to

         18  defeat them.

         19                 There is no definitive quantitative

         20  evidence of the number of attempted thefts which

         21  have been prevented by audible car alarms. All that

         22  most people will see or hear is the alarm itself,

         23  not the initial attempted break-in, which initially

         24  sets the vehicle off.

         25                 A thief who is deterred by the noise

                                                            20

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  will quickly leave the area, and the attention of

          3  the bystandards or nearby residents will probably be

          4  drawn by the noise and not the attempted break in.

          5                 We do know that autotheft has

          6  plummeted nearly 80 percent in the last ten years,

          7  and we are reluctant to remove any of the elements

          8  of a theft prevention system that has contributed to

          9  this stunning drop.

         10                 Therefore, the Police Department is

         11  opposed to the current draft of Intro. 81,

         12  prohibiting the sale or installation of audible

         13  vehicle alarms, and urges the Committee to

         14  reconsider this bill.

         15                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         16  provide our comment, and I will be pleased to answer

         17  any questions you may have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, both, for being here and for your testimony.

         20                 Before I begin my testimony, I'd like

         21  to recognize that we're joined by two other

         22  Committee members, Council Member Serrano and

         23  Koppell from the Bronx.

         24                 It's a pleasure to have them with us

         25  here today.
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          2                 Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni, in

          3  your statement you make reference, and I'll read it,

          4  that the New York City Police Department, DEP, will

          5  be studying noise abatement strategies and

          6  techniques that will reduce the noise of car alarms,

          7  while not compromising our auto crime reductions.

          8                 Is this a formal study which is being

          9  scoped out? Or is it something that you would like

         10  to study, and you have intentions of endeavoring to

         11  create a study on this. If you can expand a little

         12  more on your remarks with reference to the study of

         13  car alarms, I'd appreciate that.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         15  I'd be happy to. As you know, when we talk about the

         16  noise code, obviously it's a comprehensive code, and

         17  what we try to do, we try to take each element and

         18  in fact develop a package that would create a

         19  quieter environment for the City, as I suggested in

         20  my testimony, without losing its vibrancy.

         21                 In the area of car alarms, we have a

         22  balance here, and this is something, when we talk

         23  about a study, you know, people hear a study, they

         24  say, well, sounds great, good lip service, see you

         25  again in two years with some type of recommendation.
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          2  And I would hope that you have the faith in some of

          3  the things that we've done collaboratively that that

          4  is not the way we operate.

          5                 We've already begun discussions with

          6  people, and I think you'll get testimony, for

          7  instance, from the transportation alternative folks.

          8  With respect to things that we might be able to do

          9  to obviously circumvent the noise that is needless

         10  in the City. And when I talk about balance, I think

         11  we have to recognize that balance also comes with a

         12  very big quality of life area, and that's the area

         13  of crime. We want our people safe.

         14                 We do not want to compromise our

         15  ability to reduce crime in the area of auto theft.

         16  As the inspector alluded to, there is an 80 percent

         17  reduction over a ten-year period, and there's also

         18  other crimes that also are detected with an alarm

         19  going off.

         20                 That being said, I think there's a

         21  way that we can work smarter. For instance, we can

         22  develop strategies, as we did with the march

         23  initiatives, which was the multi-agency response to

         24  chronic hot spots; Operation Silent Night, which PD

         25  was spearheaded on behalf of the Administration.
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          2                 So, this is an area that we look to

          3  to work smarter, develop strategies, pinpoint the

          4  areas where we might have the most problems, for

          5  instance, and work with the PT and others to develop

          6  a strategy that will make a quieter environment

          7  without compromising the ability to reduce crime.

          8                 And as we have done in many areas of

          9  the code, this is possible. For instance, when

         10  people thought it was impossible for us to reach out

         11  to stakeholders, we went to advocate groups, we went

         12  to construction folks, we went to the Real Estate

         13  Board of New York, the Nightlife Association, people

         14  thought it would be impossible to strike a balance

         15  to have a noise code that would allow us to have a

         16  quieter environment, which we will have, over a

         17  period of time, as well as having the balance that

         18  the City would not lose its vibrancy. And we plan on

         19  doing the same thing in this regard.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I hear

         21  what you said. I'm just trying to figure out if

         22  there is or if there is not going to be some very

         23  formal and focused study specifically on the issue

         24  of car alarms, and whether or not it is envisioned

         25  whether that study will result in some kind of
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          2  legislative proposal to deal with the issues of car

          3  alarms.

          4                 You know, will there be a study, and

          5  is it the intent of the study to yield a legislative

          6  proposal, such as what the Council did in Local Law

          7  110 of 1993, where we outlawed certain types of car

          8  alarms or whatever; what do you think? Are we

          9  looking for legislation there?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         11  think what I've suggested is that we've already

         12  begun that process.

         13                 Even while we were writing the Noise

         14  Code, we developed a dialogue, and our intent is to

         15  come up with a strategy and recommendations that

         16  will -- you know, we at DEP and, in fact, PD would

         17  agree, no one likes to be awakened in the middle of

         18  the night with a car alarm that is blaring that

         19  affects the quality of life of individuals, and also

         20  does not allow them to get the proper rest they

         21  need.

         22                 However, again, it's striking that

         23  fine balance. So, we will be studying this, and we

         24  will look to other stakeholders for their input so

         25  we can come up with a comprehensive plan that will
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          2  reduce the amount of noise that car alarms create

          3  right now. With, again, the important thing is

          4  without compromising the ability for PD, the

          5  greatest Police Force in the world, to do their job

          6  and keep the people safe.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Although you

          8  don't explicitly state it in your testimony, Deputy

          9  Commissioner Avaltroni, I assume you're not

         10  supportive of the bill. You don't say that you're

         11  not supportive of it, but I --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Chair,

         13  I have a great deal of respect for this body, and as

         14  you folks know, we worked together --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just wanted to

         16  get you on the record.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         18                 We had intended to work with you, and

         19  no one has the premium on what is totally right to

         20  create a quieter environment in this case, we happen

         21  to work for a great Mayor, a Mayor who gives us the

         22  direction to improve the quality of life for all of

         23  New Yorkers, whether it be in the area of noise

         24  control or crime reduction. We also plan on working

         25  very closely with these, as we have in the past, we
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          2  have championed significant efforts, and we plan on

          3  doing that in the process. You will be part of the

          4  process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

          6  have a question for Deputy Inspector Lawrence.

          7  Deputy Inspector, you indicate quite clearly that

          8  you oppose the current draft of Intro. 81, and you

          9  asked the Committee to reconsider the bill, and as

         10  you heard by my own opening statement, I have done

         11  some reconsidering of this bill, even in advance of

         12  the hearing. This law that's before us, this bill

         13  that's before us today, has a pretty broad sweep, it

         14  would ban the sale and installation of after market

         15  car alarms, and it's very tempting for me as

         16  Chairman, and for people in the audience who have to

         17  suffer the bane of car alarms, that, you know,

         18  sounds like a good thing to do.

         19                 But even in my own mind I said, look,

         20  even if we didn't go into that extent, you know,

         21  what if we just take Local Law 10 of 1993, which

         22  created categories of illegal alarms, and extended

         23  that same logic to the people who sell and install

         24  alarms. Because now if you own or operate an alarm,

         25  a car alarm, you're subject of Local Law 10 of 1993,
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          2  and so why don't we apply the same standard to

          3  people who sell these, so it will be a situation

          4  where you can't own or operate these alarms, and you

          5  can't sell them, and you can't install them, so it

          6  will sort of like close the loop. It will take the

          7  logic, embed it in Local Law 10 of 1993 and extend

          8  it to those that sell and install alarms.

          9                 So, you asked me to reconsider. I

         10  reconsidered it. Okay, so now I'm asking, well, why

         11  don't we just close the loop and make the logic

         12  consistent so everyone is reading out of the same

         13  hymnal.

         14                 MR. LAWRENCE: I will just say, Mr.

         15  Chairman, the logic is consistent, and the law, as

         16  it exists, there's a mechanism in place to deal with

         17  the illegal car alarm.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         19  speak right into the mic.

         20                 MR. LAWRENCE: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         22                 MR. LAWRENCE: As the law exists,

         23  there is a mechanism to address an illegal car alarm

         24  that's going off for more than three minutes, it's

         25  not shutting off, we're able to enforce, we're able
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          2  to tow, we're able to do those things, and without

          3  seeing the new proposal, it's very difficult for me

          4  to comment on. There are a number of issues, one

          5  being that how do we ensure that every car alarm

          6  being sold meets the proposed standards, uniformed

          7  standards.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: To make a law,

          9  right? Like make it illegal, that would send them

         10  the hint. You know, so that way they know. Because

         11  right now, what happens now, someone gets a car,

         12  used car, whatever, they go to the auto shop, they

         13  say I want to get a car alarm, I just spent six

         14  grand for this car and I want to protect it or

         15  whatever, I got a good used car here and I want to

         16  get an alarm for it. And, so, of course, you know,

         17  the vendor, in 72 percent of the stores they walk

         18  into, they're going to say you're going to want

         19  this, you're going to want a perimeter protector,

         20  you're going to want a vibrational noise, any plane

         21  comes into like New York City air space, and like

         22  your car alarm is going to go off like you're going

         23  to be so safe. And, so, they say, yeah, I want my

         24  car to be as safe as it possibly can be. It's all

         25  shiney, it's all new, you know, how people are with
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          2  brand new cars. They get them. They want to say,

          3  gee, this thing is nice, I want to do everything I

          4  can for my car, so they go and they purchase this

          5  illegal alarm, maybe they don't know the law,

          6  whatever, next thing they know, motorcycle drives

          7  by, plane flies over head, garbage truck comes by,

          8  you know, vibration, perimeter, whatever it is, and

          9  these alarms are shrieking. I think we have an

         10  obligation to -- if we're going to ask the owners of

         11  these devices who will be subject to your

         12  enforcement --

         13                 MR. LAWRENCE: Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Why don't we

         15  make it easy for them and just say, look, we should

         16  let everyone know what the illegal attributes of

         17  certain car alarms are and make it illegal to sell

         18  those, and I think that will have less proliferation

         19  of these illegal alarms, less summonses, because

         20  more car alarms will be compliant.

         21                 I'm doing my best here, help me out.

         22                 MR. LAWRENCE: Yes, you're doing

         23  terrific.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MR. LAWRENCE: Walking through the
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          2  door to buy an illegal alarm, I'm not sure what you

          3  mean by that, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I've got it

          5  right here. An illegal alarm --

          6                 MR. LAWRENCE: It's not illegal until

          7  it goes more than three minutes, so it's very

          8  difficult for me to comment on somebody walking into

          9  a shop and wanting to protect their property and

         10  buying an alarm.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let's back up a

         12  second because I can't let you go there.

         13                 The thing is, any alarm that is able

         14  to sound for more three minutes, anyone that has one

         15  of these perimeter things where you get within a

         16  certain distance of it, and it, you know, detects

         17  your presence and goes off. Any that will go off

         18  because of vibration only and not direct physical

         19  contact with the vehicle, these are illegal alarms

         20  and these have illegal features, and if these are

         21  made illegal, and, you know, inspectors that go into

         22  these shops or it would at least put the purveyors

         23  of these alarms on notice that if they continue to

         24  sell these kinds of alarms, they are running afoul

         25  of the law. And, you know, again, and they may or
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          2  may not -- and, so, this is our position. Everyone

          3  should be reading off the same law. Why we're having

          4  people sell car alarms that are illegal for use in

          5  New York City, the people who live in New York City.

          6                 MR. LAWRENCE: Getting back to my

          7  argument, to walk into an alarm shop and buy an

          8  alarm, it's not illegal. You presume it's going to

          9  function within the parameters of the law. It

         10  doesn't become illegal until it crosses that line.

         11                 And most shops that we've spoken

         12  with, the first thing that folks want is an audible

         13  car alarm, and they build from that. The audible

         14  portion of the alarm is the basic car alarm, for

         15  folks that either don't have that much money to

         16  protect their property or choose only to buy that

         17  and they can't get the other features, whether it be

         18  an immobilizer or a GPS, they just want something to

         19  protect their property, and they're walking in in

         20  good faith to these shops in the City, expecting to

         21  get that. And they're not going to know that it

         22  malfunctioned until it does. And it's up to them now

         23  to go back to that manufacturer that installed --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me

         25  understand your question. Because we're not talking
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          2  about a malfunction. We're talking about alarms on

          3  the mark that have specific, you know, design

          4  capabilities that they build in intentionally, such

          5  as the perimeter, such as the vibrational, such as

          6  all these other attributes, which is are not legal

          7  for use in New York City.

          8                 So, it's not the case that the alarm

          9  is malfunctioning, it is the case that the alarm is

         10  functioning perfectly well. But not in a way which

         11  is legal in New York City.

         12                 So, again, I don't want to belabor

         13  this, because I don't think I'm getting through, but

         14  let's just jump to enforcement for a second. Is it

         15  the case that NYPD, is there any kind of patrol

         16  guide or any kind of -- is there any kind of

         17  standard, is there any kind of sensitivity that's

         18  instilled in the police officers with respect to

         19  enforcing against illegal car alarms?

         20                 I mean, I don't know whether the

         21  police that are on the street even necessarily know

         22  the difference between a car alarm that's operating

         23  properly or the car alarm that's operating outside

         24  the law.

         25                 Let's just say a patrol car is parked
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          2  and they're talking to someone on the street and all

          3  of a sudden, you know, a truck goes down the street

          4  and like hits a pothole, and, you know, sets off a

          5  vibration, and 15 feet away three cars and their car

          6  alarm go off. That means you've got vibrational,

          7  that only these three car alarms went off because of

          8  vibration, which means that the alarms that are in

          9  those cars are not legal for use in New York City,

         10  and those cars should be subject to a summons. Do

         11  the cops on the street know that? Or is there any

         12  intention to try to deal with that? This is where

         13  I'm getting at.

         14                 MR. LAWRENCE: They know by walking

         15  into the Police Academy, that's part of the

         16  training. This is all part of the procedures, all

         17  part of the patrol guide, all part of the process,

         18  the police officers in the precincts are subject to

         19  training, they go through union training, refresher

         20  training, and they're very sensitive to the topical

         21  issues to for that particular community. And if the

         22  car alarm is such, they'll be refreshed and

         23  retrained.

         24                 The instance you speak about

         25  specifically, naturally those vehicles will be
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          2  subject to receiving ECB summonses, should they go

          3  past the three minutes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, it's not a

          5  question of -- it's not a question of going past

          6  three minutes, just the fact that the alarm was

          7  activated by a truck that caused a vibration 15 or

          8  20 feet away, means those alarms in those cars are

          9  illegal, because the police officer saw that there

         10  was no direct contact with the vehicle, yet the

         11  alarm went off. So, I think there's a little bit of

         12  a knowledge gap on behalf of the police, and they

         13  have so many other things to do, and they completely

         14  understand how the car alarm is not the utmost thing

         15  on their list of things to deal about, to deal with.

         16  And as much as I would like to see enforcement

         17  against any illegal activity, I have a lot of

         18  sympathy for people who purchase a car alarm, with a

         19  vibrational component, and then end up getting a

         20  summons, it would be better, in my mind, that the

         21  store that he or she went into in New York City

         22  never sold them that vibrational thing. As much as I

         23  want the enforcement, I feel the people are going to

         24  get a big ticket for that. And, so, this is why the

         25  logic of our approach is more compelling to close
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          2  the loop, you have everyone reading off the same

          3  page.

          4                 I'll just take one final statement

          5  from you, then I have to move on to my colleagues

          6  that have many, many questions for you.

          7                 Please.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: If I

          9  can just make one statement Councilman Gennaro,

         10  Chairman Gennaro, the PD does have many

         11  responsibilities, but the PD worked very, very

         12  diligently with us in developing a noise code, so

         13  they're very cognizant of the fact that this is a

         14  quality of life issue.

         15                 The points are well taken, but I go

         16  back again, that is really why we want the

         17  opportunity to have the study, which is going to

         18  take into consideration many factors, how do we

         19  develop a quieter environment, and how do we not

         20  compromise our ability to enforce the law.

         21                 And I think the Police Department

         22  proved over and over again, not only in the area

         23  that we are talking about, they think outside the

         24  box. We happen to have the greatest Police

         25  Commissioner in the world here who has a fine staff.
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          2  We will work with them to ensure we do not

          3  compromise our efforts from a law enforcement

          4  perspective, and we will work to make sure that we

          5  create a quieter environment. We will work with you

          6  and report back to you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 I'm going to turn the questioning

         10  over to John Liu.

         11                 I may come back to some other

         12  questions, but I am going to turn it over to John

         13  now and my other colleagues who have questions.

         14                 But before I do that, I just wanted

         15  to thank you both once again for being here today.

         16  Thank you for your Herculean efforts on behalf of

         17  trying to come up with a comprehensive, you know,

         18  noise package to make this a quieter city. You know,

         19  certainly the issue of car alarms is a very

         20  challenging one, and I appreciate the opportunity to

         21  engage you in a dialogue on this very important

         22  issue, and my discussion with you in the last few

         23  minutes has been very helpful to me and I thank you.

         24                 And with that I recognize John Liu,

         25  Chairman of the Transportation Committee, main
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          2  sponsor of this bill.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman. I do want to take this opportunity to

          5  thank both you and your staff for being with us

          6  today.

          7                 This is an issue that is important

          8  and we do want to work with you on this.

          9                 I have a number of questions and I

         10  would like to ask you to keep your responses as

         11  brief as possible.

         12                 Commissioner Avaltroni, thank you for

         13  your efforts to help make New York City more

         14  livable.

         15                 What would you say is the number one

         16  type of complaint that comes in the 3-1-1 system?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Well,

         18  there are a number, as you are aware, Council Member

         19  Liu. We have had discussions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is there a number

         21  one type of complaint?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: There

         23  are areas that I suggested before. And I don't want

         24  to pinpoint.

         25                 Again, this is no one wearing a black
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          2  hat in the City. What we're trying to do, as I said,

          3  we worked very hard to develop a consensus. What

          4  we've done is that we've gone to folks, for

          5  instance, in the construction field, in the area of

          6  nightlife, in the area of circulation devices, to

          7  really extend to them our willingness to work with

          8  them to achieve an objective to make the City

          9  quieter.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Commissioner

         11  Avaltroni, I'm just trying to save time here.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is there a number

         14  one source -- a number one type of complaint coming

         15  into the 3-1-1 system, whether it be noise

         16  complaints, trash complaints, complaints about

         17  elicit activities, what's the number one --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         19  mentioned to you, construction.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Construction

         21  what?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         23  Construction complaints.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Illegal

         25  construction?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: No,

          3  not illegal construction. The noise from

          4  construction, and as we look at what you proposed,

          5  you'll see remedies, to obviously limit the noise

          6  and reduce the noise in the City with regard to

          7  construction as we rebuild.

          8                 The area of car alarms, while it's

          9  not one of the top three or four is a significant

         10  issue, and I agree with you in that regard. That is

         11  why we look forward to working to develop a strategy

         12  and technology that will be friendly to us in

         13  reducing the noise, and also allowing us to enforce

         14  the law. And we look forward to working with you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Commissioner, we

         16  had a hearing on this very topic last September, and

         17  it's been nine months, and I was surprised to see

         18  what I thought was a very comprehensive attempt at

         19  reducing the noise levels in this City. I mean, for

         20  goodness sakes, we're going to ban Mr. Softee, and

         21  yet, car alarms is a huge --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: If you

         23  want to ask me a question on Mr. Softee, maybe I

         24  need to qualify our position there, because much has

         25  been written and no one is picking on Mr. Softee. We
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          2  all want our children to have ice cream.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, Mr. Softee

          4  was specifically spoken about by Mayor Bloomberg.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That's

          6  because a Mr. Softee truck happened to pass.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay. Well, I do

          8  gather, I am willing to say right here that although

          9  you have the statistics and I don't have the

         10  statistics, that the number of complaints coming

         11  into the Administration and through all of my

         12  colleagues' offices, about car alarms, far

         13  overshadows the number of complaints about Mr.

         14  Softee. And yet we're doing something about Mr.

         15  Softee, but not something about car alarms.

         16                 I merely want to --

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Let me

         18  just stop you there, Councilman, because that is not

         19  a true statement, that we're not doing anything

         20  about car alarms.

         21                 And with respect to Mr. Softee, I

         22  know you want to keep it brief, people have been

         23  really harping on that.

         24                 Our intent is, first in the area of

         25  Mr. Softee, or others, Mr. Softee just happened to

                                                            41

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  be mentioned, we do not want someone sitting outside

          3  of a residence for hours on end playing music that

          4  will disturb the ability to people to have rest and

          5  peace.

          6                 With respect to the area that you

          7  were discussing, we are looking at a comprehensive

          8  study which has already begun during our noise code

          9  preparation, dialogue with those who have answers

         10  that we might not have that will allow us to develop

         11  strategies and technologies, to work smarter and

         12  achieve the objective I think that you want.

         13                 And with regard to not answering, you

         14  know, nine months ago we did have a hearing, we were

         15  in the process and you were kind enough to give us

         16  an opportunity to develop a comprehensive code, and

         17  we have done that, but we have not neglected the

         18  fact that we have to deal with car alarms.

         19                 We are aware of that. We will.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I certainly don't

         21  mean to create any indictment as to the amount of

         22  action on the car alarm issue. We are trying to work

         23  on the issue as well, and we do want to work with

         24  your Department and the Administration on doing this

         25  awful problem for New Yorkers.
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          2                 I'm trying to get at some facts here.

          3  You said that although car alarm complaints may not

          4  be the number one complaints or the number top three

          5  complaints that New Yorkers submit, it is a serious

          6  issue. Because you have begun to study this problem,

          7  have you quantified the number of complaints on an

          8  annual basis that come in about blaring car alarms?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         10  think we had roughly, roughly 2,000 complaints in

         11  the last year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Two-thousand

         13  complaints.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: In the

         15  last year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Two-thousand

         17  complaints about blaring car alarms in the last

         18  year.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Car

         20  alarm complaints.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is that a

         22  substantial amount of complaints?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Of

         24  course it is. You know, when you talk about a

         25  substantial amount of complaints, let's put it along
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          2  perspective. If it is a needless car alarm going off

          3  that's disturbing the peace, no one is happy about

          4  that. The Police Department is not happy about that.

          5  How many of those actually yielded to the reduction

          6  in crime with auto theft as the inspector cited, an

          7  80 percent reduction in auto theft over a ten-year

          8  period is significant. Again, it's striking the

          9  balance of Councilman Liu, and I know you've talked

         10  about this in the past, so we've had this dialogue.

         11  It's striking that fine balance that will achieve

         12  your objective, which is not dissimilar to our

         13  objective.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         15  much for your experience, Commissioner Avaltroni.

         16                 If I could ask some questions of the

         17  Deputy Inspector, Mr. Chair?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: By all means,

         19  please.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Deputy Inspector,

         21  you made several statements in your testimony that I

         22  find very interesting. I just wanted to clarify with

         23  you, if I may.

         24                 The auto theft has plummeted nearly

         25  80 percent in the last ten years; is that based on
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          2  statistics that have been compiled by the NYPD?

          3                 MR. LAWRENCE: Yes, sir. Just to put

          4  it in perspective, in 1993 there were over 111,000

          5  vehicles stolen in New York City. Last year we

          6  closed out just a hair over 23,000.

          7                 That's an incredible figure.

          8                 1993 there were over 300 vehicles

          9  stolen every day in New York City. Last year,

         10  23,000. Sixty a day.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: It is incredible.

         12                 MR. LAWRENCE: It is an incredible

         13  reduction.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And even with

         15  this Bloomberg Administration, I believe that auto

         16  theft has continued to decline in New York City.

         17                 MR. LAWRENCE: It is continuing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And I fully

         19  applaud the efforts of the New York City Police

         20  Department, our finest, on combatting auto theft, as

         21  well as every single other crime that exists in New

         22  York City.

         23                 You stated that you're reluctant to

         24  remove any element of a theft prevention system,

         25  which has contributed to this stunning drop.
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          2                 MR. LAWRENCE: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: This stunning

          4  drop, an 80 percent decline in auto theft, is in my

          5  opinion attributable to the efforts of your

          6  colleagues in the NYPD, and we give you full credit

          7  for that.

          8                 I believe that there's some credit

          9  that needs to be given to systems that have come on

         10  the market in recent years as well, systems that

         11  actually help stop car theft, systems that disable

         12  ignition, systems that make it much more difficult

         13  to enter a car, even simple devices such as a

         14  steering wheel lock, those devices, in my opinion,

         15  have contributed, to the decline in auto theft.

         16                 I believe that the programs that the

         17  NYPD have promoted very effectively in our

         18  communities have also contributed to the decline and

         19  auto theft. The vin etching that the Police

         20  Department does for free, I believe is very

         21  effective.

         22                 There have been nationwide studies

         23  that demonstrate the effectiveness of vin etching in

         24  the deterrence of car theft.

         25                 The CAT program, where car owners
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          2  voluntarily allow police officers to stop their cars

          3  in late hours of the night without cause, those

          4  programs have also contributed to the decline in car

          5  theft.

          6                 But you mentioned that these elements

          7  of theft prevention systems have contributed to this

          8  stunning drop; what evidence do you have of that?

          9                 MR. LAWRENCE: Well, first let me say

         10  that everything you say has contributed to the

         11  stunning drop. And as I would say where I wouldn't

         12  want to remove the audible car alarm, I wouldn't

         13  want to eliminate or take away any of those

         14  preventive measures from folks that want to protect

         15  their property, all of this has contributed to this

         16  drop.

         17                 I mean, simply common sense --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is it common

         19  sense on your part, are we talking about your common

         20  sense? Or are we talking about proof that these

         21  audible car alarms that we are trying to eliminate

         22  has actually contributed to a decline in auto theft?

         23                 MR. LAWRENCE: I understand the

         24  frustration. I'm frustrated --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No. I'm simply
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          2  asking you a question. Do you have any proof that

          3  audible car alarms have actually contributed to the

          4  decline of auto theft in New York City.

          5                 MR. LAWRENCE: When I say I'm

          6  frustrated, I mean it's very difficult to capture

          7  when an audible car alarm has worked. I'm getting to

          8  my point. There's no mechanism in place, there's no

          9  check-off on a report, to say that an arrest did or

         10  didn't begin with an audible car alarm or 9-1-1 call

         11  for an audible car alarm, but you're looking at

         12  specifics.

         13                 But as recently as this past Monday,

         14  June 7th, on the upper east side of Manhattan, the

         15  19th Precinct, about 8:30 in the morning, there was

         16  an arrest that resulted directly as a result of an

         17  audible car alarm. The vehicle owner, in his

         18  apartment on East 95th Street, hears his car alarm

         19  going off, looks out the window, sees the gentleman

         20  next to his car, the glass had been shattered.

         21                 He runs downstairs, a bystander on

         22  the block tells him this guy broke into your car.

         23  Not wanting to confront the individual, he follows

         24  him. The guy walks down the street, he breaks into

         25  another car with a yellow screwdriver.
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          2                 The second victim is now outside his

          3  car. They follow the guy and they end up

          4  apprehending the individual and they hold him for

          5  the police.

          6                 In this person's possession were six

          7  CDs from one car, 36 CDs from another car, and

          8  roughly $9 in loose change.

          9                 This subject, who was arrested as a

         10  result of this ringing car alarm, has an extensive

         11  arrest history. A rap sheet, probably 40, 50

         12  arrests. Not only in New York but other states,

         13  Florida, Georgia, Tennessee, New York. As we speak,

         14  before you and the Council, he's in jail today

         15  because of that arrest, and that's one example. It

         16  takes work to find those examples. They exist. And

         17  that's why I am reluctant to remove all of the car

         18  alarms from our tool box.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Inspector, thank

         20  you for that story.

         21                 And I'd like to follow up on that.

         22  Could you tell me which precinct that was in?

         23                 MR. LAWRENCE: That was the 19th

         24  Precinct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: In the 19th
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          2  Precinct --

          3                 MR. LAWRENCE: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:-- In Manhattan?

          5                 So, you do have some statistics --

          6                 MR. LAWRENCE: Right, and there are

          7  others. Very difficult to capture.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, you have

          9  statistics that show that there is this 80 percent

         10  decrease in car theft in New York City over the last

         11  ten years. You have absolutely no statistics on why,

         12  on the reasons that the car theft has declined that

         13  much?

         14                 MR. LAWRENCE: Well, Councilman, I

         15  think you're looking for specifics going through how

         16  many --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No. I'm just

         18  asking if you have them or not. You could say no, we

         19  don't have them.

         20                 MR. LAWRENCE: No, we don't have that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.

         22                 MR. LAWRENCE: You know, why

         23  particular cars were not stolen, I can't answer that

         24  question. I don't think we'll ever know. It's part

         25  of the strategies that you spoke about. It's all
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          2  contributing and it's working, and making arrests,

          3  and stronger prosecutions and all of that is

          4  contributing to the plummeting theft rate in New

          5  York City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Do you have any

          7  numbers of car thieves that have been apprehended

          8  because a car alarm, an audible car alarm went off?

          9                 MR. LAWRENCE: No, I don't.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: You just have

         11  this story of this one incident in the 19th

         12  Precinct?

         13                 MR. LAWRENCE: Well, I have a couple

         14  other instances. If you would want me to speak to

         15  them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No, I'm just

         17  saying if you know this happened on Monday --

         18                 MR. LAWRENCE: There was one in Upper

         19  Manhattan, in Queens, I mean they do exist, but

         20  there's no way to capture it unless picking up the

         21  phone.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, there is a

         23  way to capture it --

         24                 MR. LAWRENCE: It's not entirely

         25  practical, and I'm not sure what's accomplished by
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          2  that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just step

          4  back one second and frame this a little bit.

          5  Although the effectiveness or non-effectiveness of

          6  car alarms as a theft deterrence is certainly

          7  central to the debate on what we're going to do with

          8  car alarms, I think even our own bill here, Intro.

          9  81, as it is written, you know, admits that we will

         10  continue to be a car alarm City because Intro. 81

         11  doesn't even go to the manufacturer of installed

         12  alarms, and I think this is really an issue of not

         13  so much the efficacy of alarms in how they deter

         14  crime, but the scourge of alarms that operate

         15  improperly and have illegal functions.

         16                 I think we can all agree that alarms

         17  that have illegal functions shouldn't be allowed to

         18  operate in New York City, and we're just figuring

         19  out the best way to get to that goal, so I just

         20  wanted to kind of recast the focus here.

         21                 And, you know, while the efficacy of

         22  car alarms in deterring crimes will always be an

         23  element in this discussion, I just don't want it to

         24  consume the entire discussion.

         25                 We also have some people from

                                                            52

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  industry who flew in from way, way out of town who

          3  have to catch a plane soon, and so I think perhaps

          4  if you can go on to a next point.

          5                 MR. LAWRENCE: And Council member,

          6  it's our desire to work with the Council and DEP to

          7  make the City safer and quieter city.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Chairman, I

         10  will just conclude with another brief set of

         11  questions.

         12                 The reason I have to ask you these

         13  questions, Deputy Inspector, is because you are

         14  making a statement on behalf of the New York City

         15  Police Department, and these statements we consider,

         16  we take extremely seriously, as does the rest of the

         17  public. So, when you say that, when you make these

         18  assertions that auto theft has plummeted nearly 80

         19  percent in the last ten years, and that you're

         20  reluctant to remove any of the elements of a theft

         21  prevention system, which has contributed to the

         22  stunning drop, I mean I think that -- I just feel

         23  that it has to be clarified, that it actually is no

         24  proof that these audible car alarms deter auto

         25  theft.
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          2                 The case that you speak about and I'm

          3  going to follow up with the 19th Precinct to see

          4  what kind of car and what kind of alarm that was it,

          5  if glass is shattered and someone does, and the

          6  alarm goes off, and then the owner of the car, which

          7  happens to be within earshot of the car, which is

          8  often not the case, people often park cars maybe a

          9  couple of blocks away from where they actually live,

         10  if that alarm actually stopped a car theft, then

         11  great.

         12                 The problem is that we get too many

         13  complaints, and there is too much proof that the car

         14  alarm goes off and actually is not doing anything,

         15  is not doing anything to deter car theft, but is in

         16  fact doing everything to deter people from getting a

         17  good night's rest.

         18                 Your statement, the statements that

         19  you have here would lead me to believe that you

         20  would also oppose what is currently illegal, which

         21  is, in other words, the position that the NYPD seems

         22  to be taking in this case is, there's a possibility

         23  that these alarm systems deter car theft. So, you

         24  would not want to take this away from New Yorkers.

         25  There's a possibility that the perimeter-type car
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          2  alarms deter car theft. I mean, if no one comes

          3  within a foot of your car, then no one can ever

          4  steal your car.

          5                 Are you against those kinds of

          6  requirements as well?

          7                 You know what, I'm just going to keep

          8  it brief. Let me ask you this then, let's talk about

          9  the three-minute rule.

         10                 Do you think that if a car alarm goes

         11  off for five minutes, that it has a greater

         12  deterrent effect than a car alarm that goes off for

         13  three minutes? Yes or no?

         14                 If it goes off for five minutes, is

         15  it more of a deterrent effect than if it goes off

         16  for three minutes?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just have to

         18  take a little Chairman's prerogative, and while I --

         19  three minutes, it is a fact that an alarm that rings

         20  for more than three minutes is illegal, and, so,

         21  it's just a little besides the point of what we're

         22  trying to do. And unfortunately, we really have to

         23  move on.

         24                 But I think that Chairman Liu's

         25  intent to try to find out the efficacy of car alarms
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          2  in deterring crime is an imminently reasonable

          3  request on his behalf, because we're the ones that

          4  have to listen to people who complain appropriately

          5  when these things ring all night, and so it

          6  certainly begs the question of how good are these

          7  things at deterring crime, and the only reasonable

          8  entity to direct those questions to would be to the

          9  NYPD.

         10                 And, so, I guess on John's behalf and

         11  on my behalf, to the extent that the NYPD has any

         12  hard information on the efficacy of car alarms in

         13  deterring crime, we'd be very grateful if you could

         14  make it available to the Committee, rather than, you

         15  know, continue this dialogue. Because the hour of

         16  the day and the numbers of witnesses and the

         17  shortness of the hearing, you know, dictates that we

         18  have to move on to other pastures.

         19                 Would that be okay? You suggest to us

         20  whatever you have concrete, for real, that shows

         21  that car alarms deter crime, because when our

         22  constituents come to us and they say these things do

         23  nothing, and we demand that you get rid of these

         24  things, and you've got to show us, and so you have

         25  to help us out there.
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          2                 MR. LAWRENCE: Absolutely. I'd be

          3  happy to help you out, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, John,

          8  once again for your leadership, and no one is going

          9  to call John Liu "Mr. Softee," I'll tell you that,

         10  right?

         11                 And I wish to recognize Eva

         12  Moskowitz, the prime sponsor of the resolution

         13  that's before the Council today with respect to

         14  sending a message to Albany that we don't want any

         15  more discounts for alarms that ring out loud and

         16  only for those that are silent.

         17                 Thanks for being here, Council Member

         18  Moskowitz. I recognize you for a statement, and then

         19  I have other questions. Other members will be

         20  recognized for questioning.

         21                 The next member up for questions will

         22  be Council Member Vallone, that will be after

         23  Council Member Moskowitz makes a statement.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         25  Chair Gennaro. I very much appreciate all the work
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          2  that you've done.

          3                 As you know, I'm prime sponsor of

          4  John Liu's bill. I also had my own bill, and it

          5  seemed to me that Liu's bill is a good compromise

          6  bill. I just wanted to say a word since the 19th

          7  Precinct is the precinct that I represent and I do

          8  think the question we have to ask ourselves, our car

          9  alarms, do they add value? And if there were a

         10  significant deterrent effect, that would obviously

         11  weigh into our calculus. I think the NYPD is not

         12  giving itself enough credit for the work that it has

         13  done. The reason that auto theft has been reduced is

         14  because of policing efforts and not because of car

         15  alarms.

         16                 Having grown up in New York City, and

         17  having had my car stolen, I'm familiar with the

         18  difference between 1979 and the Year 2004, and that

         19  is because of a major policing effort, including

         20  going after chop shops and so forth and I think that

         21  has to be recognized.

         22                 While there may be anecdotal evidence

         23  that in one or two cases had the effect, I can tell

         24  you, if you sat in my constituent office, 99 percent

         25  of the calls on this topic are people who wish the
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          2  car was stolen because then it would stop making the

          3  noise.

          4                 And I think that that perspective has

          5  to be really taken into account, as we consider this

          6  legislation. We're trying to deal with a major

          7  quality of life issue, in a sensible way, and I

          8  wholeheartedly support John Liu's bill. I think it's

          9  a very good compromise, and so I appreciate the

         10  opportunity to specify my views on this, and I look

         11  forward to hearing the responses and the further

         12  questioning that my colleagues have.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you, Eva. I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair. I'll try to be brief. I'm also reluctant

         18  to eliminate any crime-fighting tool, but I overcame

         19  that reluctance after losing a night's sleep

         20  recently, and the benefit here does not outweigh the

         21  harm for New York City residents.

         22                 I have to agree with Council Member

         23  Liu. It's hard to believe that the Administration

         24  wants to ban Mr. Softee music but not car alarms.

         25  Mr. Softee music is occasionally mildly annoying,
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          2  while car alarms are mind-numbing life altering

          3  devices.

          4                 And if you don't believe me, ask

          5  anyone who lost a night's sleep and tried to work a

          6  dangerous job, or any type of job the next day. This

          7  is a serious, serious harm to New York City.

          8                 Mr. Avaltroni, I'm concerned about

          9  your study for two reasons.

         10                 Number one, the Police Department

         11  just testified that they're not in favor of banning

         12  these alarms. Therefore, your study is flawed from

         13  the beginning. I can save your study a lot of time

         14  here. The Police Department does not have the

         15  resources to respond to car alarms. We are at war.

         16  That will not happen.

         17                 The only type of effective solution

         18  here is banning these devices. There is no other

         19  solution that the Police Department can deal with

         20  for a number of years.

         21                 My second concern with your study is

         22  the time involved. Your noise code took an

         23  inordinate amount of time. We asked for it, over and

         24  over again, and we're glad it's here but it took

         25  awhile. Protocol for emergency response I was
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          2  demanding for over two years, it's here but it took

          3  two years at least.

          4                 Frankly, New Yorkers deserve better

          5  than living through car alarm hell for a number of

          6  years while the Administration studies the issue.

          7                 So what is your time frame for the

          8  study you mentioned?

          9                 MR. LAWRENCE: Well, Council Member

         10  Vallone, I think we are in agreement with respect to

         11  car alarms. I think you're coming to a solution, a

         12  suggestion that the PD will not be opened in this

         13  study. And as I alluded to it before, they've been

         14  very open with respect to rewriting the Noise Code.

         15                 This study has already begun in terms

         16  of reaching out and seeking alternative means to

         17  deal with car alarms, and as I suggested, strategy

         18  with regard to, I think you were referring to the

         19  Sims document, I think we've made major strides in

         20  that area. The Administration is prepared to go in

         21  that direction.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I want to

         23  save time, I just referred to that to show that it

         24  takes a long time for the Administration to study

         25  it.

                                                            61

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Is there any time frame that you have

          3  envisioned for your study?

          4                 MR. LAWRENCE: We want to get this

          5  done as quickly as possible. We will start it now

          6  and it will be a continual process.

          7                 In other words, if we come up with a

          8  suggestion, or a remedy that we feel reduces the

          9  noise related to car alarms, we want to put that out

         10  there again, as long as it does not violate the

         11  Police Department. That doesn't mean six months from

         12  now that something else comes along that's a better

         13  way to do business we will not entertain that. So,

         14  it will be an ongoing study where we will reduce the

         15  noise of car alarms without allowing the PD to do

         16  their job.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I've been

         18  asked to be very brief. I had some questions about

         19  statistics about the amount of cars stolen with car

         20  alarms as opposed to without. I assume if you had

         21  those statistics you would have given them to us to

         22  support your findings. We don't have them, I'll

         23  assume you don't for now, but we will be asking for

         24  them.

         25                 Also, the industry, if we ever did
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          2  ban these alarms, they would come up. They would

          3  respond, as industries do, with alarms that do not

          4  annoy everyone in the vicinity.

          5                 But one last question, though, I

          6  wholeheartedly support Council Member Moskowitz'

          7  resolution, and I'm a sponsor of the resolution

          8  which calls for insurance benefits to go only to

          9  people with silent car alarms. It seems eminently

         10  reasonable. Is anyone at that table prepared to

         11  offer support or not support?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         13  don't either of us can make that statement now,

         14  Councilman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I have many

         16  others, but I'll yield now, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         18  Council Member Vallone.

         19                 I'll recognize Council Member Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman. I have only three questions.

         22                 Number one, I just need confirmation

         23  for what I understand the violation code said.  In

         24  regard currently we have in the code a violation

         25  that state very clear that three minutes an alarm
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          2  ringing is illegal, correct?

          3                 MR. LAWRENCE: More than three

          4  minutes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: More than three

          6  minutes. Four minutes then. Four minutes is illegal.

          7  Then if it's illegal and we have that in the code,

          8  can you say to me how many violations have been

          9  issued in regard to this particular violation in the

         10  Department? Because I know you collect all of that

         11  data.

         12                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Council Member

         13  Lopez, I'm Lieutenant Franklin --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't hear

         15  you. And I'm deaf in one ear.

         16                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: I'm Lieutenant

         17  Franklin from the Chief of Patrol's Office.

         18                 We do not track currently, we don't

         19  break down Environmental Control Board notices of

         20  violations into specific categories in that way. So,

         21  I'm unable to give you specifically how many

         22  summonses were issued for that particular --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Why we don't do

         24  that when that would be giving us incredible

         25  information about the best way to reallocate
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          2  resources.

          3                 I mean, the Administration

          4  distinguish themself for trying to put a very

          5  scientific way of allocating monies in here; why we

          6  don't do that in the Department?

          7                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: There are

          8  hundreds of possible violations. So, what happens is

          9  that to individually track particular violations

         10  most of the time it's not a practical matter.

         11                 For instance, there are thousands of

         12  VTL violations, there are hundreds of traffic rule

         13  violations, and most of them, most people aren't

         14  really concerned about.

         15                 We have started to break out those

         16  different types of violations, but as of yet,

         17  summonses issued for ringing car alarms is not one

         18  of those that has been separated out.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then let me

         20  understand this. The violations are connected to

         21  fines, right?

         22                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Yes, Ma'am.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if they

         24  are connected to fines, they are connected to fines

         25  by the specific violations in question, correct?
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          2                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: That would be

          3  correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then we do have

          5  information, because the Department of Finance know

          6  very clear when we collect the money for what we're

          7  collecting the money. We're collecting it for a red

          8  light, we're collecting for parking illegally. I

          9  know for a fact, sir, for a fact, as I have sit in

         10  here many times, in which the Department of Finance

         11  have that information.

         12                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Ma'am, the

         13  Police Department does not. We did speak to what the

         14  Department of Finance has.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This is

         16  fascinating. I will say to the Chairman then that a

         17  way for us to help the Police Department to be able

         18  to map out the best way to allocate resources is by

         19  the Department of Finance providing to them this

         20  specific breakdown of these violations, because you

         21  cannot charge the public with violations without

         22  knowing about what they are. Because the public have

         23  the right to defend themselves from that accusation

         24  in particular, and you have to tell them what it is

         25  about.
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          2                 And the summons that you give to the

          3  people, include the reason why they got a summons.

          4  Then it's really an oxymoron here from the part of

          5  the Department not to collect that information.

          6                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: Ma'am, what

          7  happens is that the police officer can issue a

          8  summons with the violation on the summons. The

          9  person at that point is aware of what they were

         10  issued the violation for.

         11                 Now, statistically, the Police

         12  Department issued roughly about 10 million summonses

         13  each year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         15  that, but there's no reason why you cannot

         16  categorize them, for the benefit of us having that

         17  information.

         18                 LIEUTENANT FRANKLIN: We do track

         19  certain categories, but to individually track what

         20  each one of those 10 million summonses were issued

         21  for, statistically at this time it is not done.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I will say

         23  that for the Mayor to put out a policy on noise, it

         24  would be I think advisable, and it will take the

         25  hypocrisy away from the policy noise, that it's not
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          2  considered on that policy the question of a lot of

          3  noise, and that you guys have that information on

          4  yourself, you have it in the Department and that the

          5  Department had not provided that to the Mayor, that

          6  policy to be a very sound, clear policy, with regard

          7  of noise.

          8                 Then my second question is, you said

          9  that 80 percent of the cases of robbery on the cars,

         10  that it had raised to 80 percent the deterring, and

         11  that number is fantastic, by the way,

         12  congratulations of that.

         13                 My question on that is, the alarms

         14  that make noise have more than ten years. They are

         15  not ten years old. Therefore before ten years ago,

         16  the numbers of robbery on cars have those alarms on,

         17  it is true, or not my assumption here, that the

         18  noise alarm didn't do nothing about stealing the car

         19  themself, because you, yourself, said that in the

         20  last ten years only, is that we have to reduce this

         21  to 80 percent. And the alarms existed ten years

         22  before.

         23                 MR. LAWRENCE: And the reduction has

         24  gone along that ten-year time line.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Exactly.
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          2                 MR. LAWRENCE: And it's very difficult

          3  to quantify, as we said earlier, how many thefts

          4  prevented by the audible car alarm, but looking back

          5  ten years and looking forward to today and even up

          6  to mid-point this year, that number continues to

          7  drop.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Correct. But my

          9  point is not that. My point about the ten years,

         10  it's fine, I accept that perfectly fine. My point is

         11  that ten years before, the numbers of robberies and

         12  cars were, you said before, on the roof. And the

         13  noise alarm existed then. It was actually the only

         14  alarm that existed.

         15                 And, therefore, if that was the only

         16  alarm that existed, I have to conclude by the

         17  numbers that you just gave us here, of the cars that

         18  were stolen, that that alarm was doing nothing for

         19  stolen cars.

         20                 MR. LAWRENCE: Whatever technology we

         21  had ten years ago, what ever alarms existed, I would

         22  contend that it did help in the reduction.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, it cannot

         24  be because you just said in the last ten years it

         25  went to 80 percent reduction.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

          3  Lopez, I think we have a stalemate here. I think we

          4  must have a stalemate.

          5                 I mean, your point is that ten years

          6  ago when car thefts were through the roof, there was

          7  just as many car alarms as there are now, and so

          8  what's changed from ten years ago to now is not the

          9  amount of car alarms which is pretty much the same,

         10  but you know, police work, which has made the

         11  difference.

         12                 So, I think we just have to say that

         13  that's the state of affairs and just like move on to

         14  the next question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, fine.

         16                 Then my last question is this: Will

         17  you clarify for me, and in this I happen to agree

         18  with the Administration, the alarm systems that the

         19  car have one very, very important function, I

         20  believe, which is that when somebody tried to break

         21  on them, this is the only divide that would prevent

         22  the people going into stealing what is inside,

         23  because due to the noise, this serve as a deterrent,

         24  in regard of breaking in and stealing inside of the

         25  car. Would you say that this is accurate, that that
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          2  would be the only real function that you can

          3  identify for this alarms?

          4                 MR. LAWRENCE: I think that what

          5  you're saying, this is the only way that we can stop

          6  a theft immediately as it occurs. Many other

          7  technologies out there work towards actually

          8  recovery of the vehicle, you know, stolen vehicle

          9  recovery systems, that's too late, the car is gone.

         10  We want to get it back and we hope to get it back

         11  and in the best condition possible, you know, for

         12  the folks. But walking up to the car, prevent a

         13  theft, the audible alarm, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the point

         15  of the administration, in reality, in regard to this

         16  alarm, is about prevention of getting to a point

         17  that the car was vandalized and it is eventually

         18  stolen. That's the point on the alarms, and that's

         19  the reason you are defending this?

         20                 MR. LAWRENCE: I would agree with

         21  that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member Lopez.
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          2                 I would like to echo one of the

          3  points you made with regard to keeping track of the

          4  statistics on summonses that are written for car

          5  alarms. This will be very helpful to us, because

          6  it's important for the Council to know what kind of

          7  efficacy you believe car alarms have in the

          8  prevention of cars being stolen, card numbers and

          9  also whatever you have in terms of numbers

         10  violations that are written specifically for car

         11  alarms? I think that would be very helpful to us.

         12                 MR. LAWRENCE: We would be happy to

         13  get back to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 And I thank my colleagues for their

         16  detailed questioning, and for their patients and for

         17  their indulgence with me, and I thank you both for

         18  being with us today. And once again, I thank you for

         19  your efforts on behalf of the comprehensive noise

         20  proposal that you helped to craft on behalf of the

         21  City of New York. We will continue this dialogue on

         22  the whole comprehensive noise proposal once we get

         23  past this issue.

         24                 Thank you, again, for being here.

         25  Thank you all the members of the Administration for
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          2  being here today.

          3                 And our next witnesses, Paul Labrie,

          4  if I'm saying that right? From BMW. Ed Bradley from

          5  Toyota. David Trebing, from Daimler Chyrsler.

          6                 I would like to point out that Mr.

          7  Bradley came here all the way from California.  And

          8  Mr. Trebing, from Daimler Chyrsler, came from

          9  Michigan. They're on a tight timetable, because they

         10  have to catch flights back to their respective

         11  cities. And we thank you for traveling all this

         12  distance to be with us here today. We understand

         13  that your time before us unfortunately has to be

         14  somewhat brief because you have planes to catch, but

         15  we're very grateful for the opportunity to have you

         16  with us here today, and so thank you. As is our

         17  custom we'll have the Counsel to the Committee give

         18  the oath and then you can identify yourselves for

         19  the record, and proceed with your testimony.

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         21  right hand.

         22                 In the testimony that you're about to

         23  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         24  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 (Witnesses sworn.)
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, so in

          4  whatever order you choose to proceed, I called out

          5  the names of the members on the panel, I would like

          6  to recognize a good friend of the Council, Stanley

          7  Schlein. Very nice to have you with us here today,

          8  Stanley.

          9                 MR. SCHLEIN: Thank you.

         10                 MR. TREBING: Chairman Gennaro,

         11  members of the Committee on Environmental

         12  Protection, thank you and good morning.

         13                 On behalf of Daimler Chrysler

         14  Corporation, I appreciate having the opportunity to

         15  appear before you to discuss this important issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me, sir.

         17  You just have to state your name for the record so

         18  it will be recorded properly.

         19                 MR. TREBING: Thank you. I am David

         20  Trebing, Senior Manager of Government Affairs for

         21  Daimler Chrysler Corporation. Stanley Schlein is a

         22  representative of Daimler Chrysler handling the

         23  corporate interests here in New York City.

         24                 As you know, Daimler Chrysler is the

         25  manufacturer of Chrysler products, Dodge and Jeep
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          2  vehicles, Mercedes Benz, Electric Motors and a

          3  number of other brands. We take very seriously the

          4  issue of environmental quality and we recognize that

          5  unrestrained sound pollution is an important

          6  component of that overall quality.

          7                 However, we also take very seriously

          8  our obligation to protect the passengers in our

          9  vehicles, as well as maintain the security of the

         10  vehicle itself.

         11                 As you evaluate options this morning,

         12  it's important to differentiate between original

         13  equipment manufacturer, OEM factory-installed alarms

         14  in the after market option. We as the manufacturer

         15  do not install alarms after the vehicle itself has

         16  been built.

         17                 Consequently, the vehicle theft

         18  alarms installed in our products are an integral

         19  part of the overall electronic architecture

         20  installed at the time of the manufacturer of that

         21  vehicle, a single central body control module

         22  regulates the operation of the car alarm, along with

         23  a wide variety of other integrated components, such

         24  as the power door locks, the power windows, et

         25  cetera.
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          2                 As a result, it is not possible to

          3  segregate the operation of the alarm and the

          4  electronic architecture in an effort to deactivate

          5  it.

          6                 On a vehicle equipped with a factory

          7  installed car alarm, it is activated one of two

          8  ways. Using the power door locks, or using the

          9  remote control key fob. When exiting the vehicle and

         10  the doors are locked by using either the power door

         11  locks or the remote key fob, the alarm is

         12  automatically engaged. Neither the customer nor the

         13  dealer can disengage a car alarm since the operating

         14  procedure is hard-coded into the body controller at

         15  the time the vehicle is manufactured.

         16                 This means the only way to disengage

         17  the alarm but to still use power door locks is to

         18  completely replace the body controller with one that

         19  does not feature the integrated car alarm feature.

         20                 This will force the consumer to

         21  endure considerable expense as well as lose access

         22  to an important safety feature. Dealerships do not

         23  have a machine that allows them to disengage the

         24  alarm itself.

         25                 While it's not possible to disengage
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          2  the alarm, it is possible to circumvent it. That

          3  entails a cumbersome process that has considerable

          4  downside risks.

          5                 Just to give you an example, here's

          6  how to do it.

          7                 When the car is stopped and the

          8  ignition is turned off, the driver on our product

          9  has 15 seconds to unlock the door and physically

         10  open one of the doors. That action sends a signal to

         11  the controller that puts the alarm itself on hold,

         12  essentially waiting for a second signal, either from

         13  the power door lock or from the remote key fob to

         14  activate the alarm.

         15                 If the driver never sends that

         16  signal, that is, he never locks the door or never

         17  sends the signal using the key fob, the alarm is

         18  never activated. To secure the vehicle, however, the

         19  driver will have to go to each door, open it,

         20  manually press the plunger lock and then close the

         21  door. As you can imagine, this is a completely

         22  unacceptable alternative for a number of reasons.

         23                 First, it presents a tremendous

         24  security issue. Imagine parking in a dark parking

         25  lot, rather than using the power door lock to secure
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          2  you vehicle at one time or to use the key fob to

          3  walk away from the car, you have to take the added

          4  time, circle the vehicle, open and manually lock

          5  each door.

          6                 You also lose your ability to sit in

          7  a locked car. That is, you turn the ignition off and

          8  you remain in a locked car longer than 15 seconds

          9  without opening a door, the alarm is automatically

         10  activated.

         11                 Second, it presents an accessibility

         12  issue.

         13                 Single source locking is a

         14  considerable benefit to physically challenged

         15  drivers. There is no option to opening, locking and

         16  closing each door manually if the intent is to

         17  circumvent a factory installed car alarm on Daimler

         18  Chrysler products.

         19                 Those individuals who are physically

         20  challenged may well find the prospect of circling

         21  the car difficult, if not impossible, their only

         22  option, therefore, is to leave the vehicle

         23  unsecured.

         24                 Third, frankly, it may not be

         25  possible at all. Circumventing an original equipment
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          2  manufacturer, a factory installed car alarm is only

          3  an option on two- and four-door vehicles which have

          4  plunger locks. Five-door vehicles, such as jeeps and

          5  minivans and our new Pacifica, that have a tailgate,

          6  a fifth door, do not have the ability to manually

          7  lock the hatchback, rather the back door is secured

          8  only electronically with what we call a virtual

          9  lock. Therefore the owners of these popular

         10  vehicles, if they don't use the power door lock or

         11  the key fob, their vehicles will remain unprotected

         12  allowing full access through the rear hatch at all

         13  times.

         14                 As you evaluate options, it's also

         15  critically important to note one point insofar as

         16  factory-installed car alarms are concerned. Our

         17  alarms are activated only by hard triggers. That is

         18  the alarm only goes off when a door or trunk lid is

         19  open. It does not sound when a window is broken, nor

         20  when the vehicle is bumped or nudged. These are

         21  referred to as "soft triggers." Therefore, when an

         22  alarm sounds that's it's factory installed on one of

         23  our products, it reflects an actual breach of

         24  security that has taken place. The car has been

         25  entered by a person without using the key. They do
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          2  not sound because a large truck has passed by or

          3  because someone has backed into a car while parallel

          4  parking. Again, it's critically important to note

          5  that on factory-installed alarms, therefore passing

          6  any regulation that restricts the installation or

          7  operation of a factory-installed car alarm greatly

          8  reduces the safety and security of the residents of

          9  New York City.

         10                 When an OEM installed car alarm is

         11  sounding, it is not noise pollution, as is put

         12  forward in Resolution 365. Rather it's a firm

         13  indicator that a legitimate security problem that

         14  warrants immediate attention has occurred.

         15                 On behalf of Daimler Chrysler, I

         16  appreciate having the opportunity to appear before

         17  you today, and urge you not to adopt either

         18  Resolution 365 as presented, or the modification of

         19  the Noise Code as it relates to the

         20  factory-installed original equipment. We look

         21  forward to working with you as this issue is

         22  discussed further.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you very much for your thoughtful and comprehensive
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          2  testimony.

          3                 We'll just take the statements of the

          4  other two witnesses before we proceed with

          5  questions.

          6                 I just want to make sure I have the

          7  statements.

          8                 Okay, thank you.

          9                 Please.

         10                 MR. BRADLEY: My name is Ed Bradley.

         11  Good morning. I'm the Regulatory Affairs Manager of

         12  Toyota Motor Sales, USA, the Corporation that sells

         13  Toyota, Lexus and Scion cars and trucks.

         14                 I'm speaking today to explain the

         15  operation of our factory installed anti-theft

         16  systems or alarm systems in our vehicles.

         17                 Our research consistently indicates

         18  the consumers want anti-theft systems in our

         19  products. Some of our less expensive models, it is

         20  offered as an option, for those consumers that are

         21  more price sensitive to equipment and features.

         22                 On our more expensive models, the

         23  customers insist upon anti-theft devices and

         24  therefore we make them standard equipment as

         25  installed at the factory.
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          2                 For Toyota, Lexus and Scion, the

          3  alarm is activated when the motorist uses the power

          4  door lock switch located on the interior vehicle's

          5  door, or by locking the doors with the remote key

          6  fob.

          7                 Our factory-installed anti-theft

          8  system cannot be turned off or defeated. In fact, we

          9  don't even have a procedure for dealership

         10  technicians to disable or defeat the system.

         11                 But there are two ways to prevent the

         12  anti-theft system from arming itself, thereby

         13  preventing the audible alarm or horn to sound in the

         14  event someone attempts to break into the vehicle.

         15                 The first method is the easiest.

         16  Simply do not lock the doors. But this also seems

         17  somehow consistent with leaving a vehicle

         18  unattended, especially here in New York City.

         19                 The second method is also relatively

         20  easy to do, somewhat inconvenient and certainly

         21  requires a change of habit for today's motorists.

         22                 Disabling the alarm would require the

         23  occupants to lock each door manually upon exiting

         24  the vehicle.

         25                 The doors could not be locked by
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          2  using the power door locks on either front door, or

          3  by using the remote locking button on the key fob.

          4  This way the vehicle could be locked but the alarm

          5  system would not be activated or turned on.

          6                 The down side to these two procedures

          7  is that it would make theft of the vehicle that much

          8  easier. By not activating or turning on the alarm

          9  system, the starter interrupt and engine immobilizer

         10  would not be activated.

         11                 In conclusion, the alarm system as

         12  designed is an effective anti-theft deterrent, and

         13  meets the needs of today's customers.

         14                 Thank you for allowing us the

         15  opportunity to provide you with information

         16  regarding the operation of factory installed alarms

         17  on Toyota, Lexus and Scion vehicles.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 MR. LABRIE: Hi. My name is Paul

         21  Labrie. I'm a field service engineer, Body

         22  Electrical Group, and I work for BMW North America.

         23                 I am here today to provide some

         24  testimony in reference to the Number 81 and Number

         25  365 resolutions.
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          2                 BMW currently supplies most of our

          3  vehicles, approximately 50 percent, with factory

          4  installed audible alarm systems. Most of these alarm

          5  systems have an integrated warning signal that

          6  integrated into the alarm system control module.

          7                 The alarm system control module

          8  cannot be disabled without disabling or

          9  disconnecting the entire alarm system.

         10                 Disconnecting or connecting the

         11  alarms module can be done with great difficulty by a

         12  BMW certified technician and is not recommended by

         13  BMW at all.

         14                 On some of our vehicles, if the siren

         15  is disconnected the vehicle horn will then be used

         16  as an audible warning as an emergency operation

         17  function.

         18                 The integrated warning alarm module

         19  has safety anti-theft and also peace of mind

         20  attributes. Some of them include acoustic and visual

         21  warnings, are used to draw attention to the vehicle

         22  and frighten off any would-be car thieves.

         23                 When the owner approaches the vehicle

         24  and feels threatened by a stranger, he or she can

         25  press the trunk button on the remote key and set off
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          2  a panic mode which will turn the warning signal on.

          3  The module has a built-in tilt center which senses

          4  changes and inclinations of the vehicle caused by

          5  the vehicle being towed or stolen and a warning will

          6  sound.

          7                 The interior motion center, which

          8  monitors any movement in the vehicles, protects the

          9  vehicle from being tampered with, will sound the

         10  alarm automatically when broken into.

         11                 If the vehicle is being stolen and

         12  the battery is disconnected, the signal or module

         13  causes the warning to activate as well.

         14                 Therefore, the audible warning alarm

         15  module is the heart of the peace of mind of the

         16  anti-theft system, and could not be disabled without

         17  causing safety and security concerns to our

         18  customers.

         19                 Prohibiting or weakening the warning

         20  signal would be detrimental to our customers and

         21  leave their vehicle without any anti-theft system

         22  device.

         23                 On vehicles that do not come with

         24  factory equipped warning systems, BMW offers a

         25  dealer-installed fully tested and developed warning
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          2  system that is identical to that installed at the

          3  factory.

          4                 This system has a warning cylinder

          5  integrated into the control module, cannot be

          6  disabled without totally disabling the entire alarm

          7  system.

          8                 This alarm is normally installed by

          9  the BMW dealer before the customer takes the liberty

         10  of their new vehicles. Special software coding that

         11  can only be performed by BMW is necessary to install

         12  these alarm systems.

         13                 For purposes of customer peace of

         14  mind, customer safety and as an anti-theft measure,

         15  we do not support the passing of these two

         16  resolutions.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 Thank you for your testimony. Thank

         20  you for being here today.

         21                 This is I guess a general question

         22  anyone is free to answer. What cost would a car

         23  owner incur who took his or her car to a dealer to

         24  disconnect the audible car alarm? I guess for your

         25  respective products. You indicated that it would be
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          2  difficult and the extreme to do that, but if one had

          3  to do that, what kind of cost would that mean for

          4  someone who chose or had to do that?

          5                 MR. LABRIE: You mean to actually take

          6  the factory alarm out of the vehicle?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: To disconnect

          8  the audible car alarm. So the car has an alarm, the

          9  factory-installed alarm did not have an alarm,

         10  making the alarm never go off, and then you'd have

         11  to speak close to the mic and identify yourself.

         12                 MR. LABRIE: First of all, we don't

         13  recommend doing that to the vehicles because they

         14  come factory equipped.

         15                 The vehicles that do not become

         16  factory equipped with the alarm, it roughly takes

         17  two to three hours to install the alarm, so it would

         18  take two to three hours to uninstall it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But even those

         20  that come from the factory -- I guess your position

         21  would be that what is installed in the factory, what

         22  is installed in the dealership are tantamount to the

         23  same thing?

         24                 MR. LABRIE: It's almost the same

         25  thing. There are a little bit differences.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How about those

          3  that come from the factor? How do we deal with that?

          4  If it's in the factory, is it just prohibitively

          5  expensive to do that?

          6                 MR. LABRIE: Yes, we wouldn't even go

          7  there at that point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, do you

          9  have a number? I'm looking for a number here.

         10                 MR. TREBING: With the Daimler

         11  Chrysler products -- sorry, David Trebing, from

         12  Daimler Chrysler. Because the alarm is an integral

         13  part, there's not a separate horn for example.

         14  What's required is to replace the body control

         15  module. An approximate number, I don't know the

         16  exact figure, but if a customer went into the

         17  dealership and asked to have the body control module

         18  replaced with one that does not have the vehicle

         19  alarm feature on it, it would be a ball park $500,

         20  plus the labor costs that the dealership would

         21  charge.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Toyota.

         23  You're from Toyota, right?

         24                 MR. BRADLEY: Yes. Ed Bradley, with

         25  Toyota and Lexus. And I've asked many people in our
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          2  service area what it would take to disable the

          3  audible alarm in terms of time or cost, no one is

          4  able to give me that information on any of our

          5  factory installed systems. We simply don't have a

          6  procedure process to remove them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 Again, a general question for anyone.

         10  If manually locked doors on cars -- wait a minute.

         11                 We're going to have the Counsel to

         12  the Committee just ask the question. This is Donna

         13  DeCostanzo, Counsel to the Committee.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: If you manually lock

         15  the doors on the cars and you don't arm the alarm

         16  for those models where that's the case, would the

         17  immobilization device still work?

         18                 MR. BRADLEY: You mean the device to

         19  prevent the vehicle from being started or hotwired?

         20                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Yes.

         21                 MR. BRADLEY: On our vehicles, no.

         22  That would not be activated, so the vehicle could be

         23  hotwired.

         24                 MR. TREBING: I'm sorry. I'm not

         25  familiar with the mobilizing and can't comment on
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          2  that aspect of the Daimler Chrysler products.

          3                 MR. LABRIE: Basically on BMWs, in

          4  order to manually lock the doors individually, what

          5  you have to do is, to picture this, we have a

          6  customer in the driver's seat. They get out of the

          7  driver's seat. They close the driver's door. They

          8  walk around to the passenger door of the vehicle.

          9  They open the passenger door, and then they crawl

         10  through the seat, over to the driver's door, push

         11  down the button to the driver's front door, the

         12  driver's rear door, and then the right rear door,

         13  and then they push the button down for the passenger

         14  rear door and then close it.

         15                 But the only problem with that is it

         16  doesn't lock the trunk, and on our sport activity

         17  vehicles, which are our SUV-type vehicles, it

         18  doesn't lock the tailgate.

         19                 And to answer your question, when the

         20  vehicle, we have a separate system that immobilizes

         21  for starting, so disabling the alarm would not

         22  affect that system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 This is a question for Mr. Bradley
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          2  from Toyota.

          3                 Can you manually shut the fifth door

          4  in your SUVs so that the alarm doesn't arm?

          5                 MR. BRADLEY: There is no manual

          6  button on the tailgate or fifth door on our SUVs and

          7  vans for locking those, but you could still walk the

          8  vehicle without setting off the alarm. It would

          9  require using the power door lock switch to lock the

         10  doors while you were in the vehicle with the engine

         11  running, and that would lock all of the doors

         12  including the tailgate.

         13                 Then switching the engine off and

         14  removing the key, getting out of the front door and

         15  using the manual lock button to lock the door and

         16  close it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It kind of

         18  reminds me when they're up in Apollo 13 they had to

         19  figure out a way to get down and had to do all kinds

         20  of weird things to get back to earth.

         21                 I don't mean that as a criticism, I'm

         22  just saying that -- you know, you put the alarms in

         23  the car to work and we don't want people defeating

         24  the alarms, and there you have it.

         25                 Next question. Would you support

                                                            91

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  federal legislation banning audible car alarms as

          3  proposed by the Speaker of the City Council?

          4                 MR. TREBING: No, Daimler Chrysler

          5  would not support that.

          6                 MR. BRADLEY: Toyota Motor Sales would

          7  not support that.

          8                 MR. LABRIE: And BMW would not support

          9  it either.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11                 Do you support a ban on after market

         12  car alarms? After market car alarms, on the sale and

         13  installation of after market car alarms?

         14                 MR. SCHLEIN: This is Stanley Schlein,

         15  on behalf of Daimler Chrysler. It would be

         16  inappropriate for us to comment with respect to

         17  other businesses. But, again, the salient point of

         18  the testimony of Daimler Chrysler is very clear. The

         19  issues concerning that have been raised in your

         20  opening statement, Mr. Chairman, and that of Council

         21  Member Liu, regarding the breeches that were

         22  unforeseen, someone breaking a window, someone

         23  nudging your car, an airplane coming, a garbage

         24  truck coming, none of those type of breeches

         25  activate the alarm in these vehicles that were
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          2  installed by the manufacturer.

          3                 The only breech, the only time the

          4  alarm goes off, is when somebody tries to break into

          5  the door of that vehicle and get in. That was what

          6  the alarms were intended for. We don't have

          7  additional features, we don't have aerospaceships,

          8  you know, super sonic features. Clearly, the

          9  unintended breech of the vehicle by someone breaking

         10  into the door is the only way these alarms go off.

         11                 So, infer from that answer what this

         12  client is seeking to protect.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 And I certainly appreciate all of the

         16  technology that you make available, and which as

         17  Stanley said that your devices respond to hard

         18  trigger, and that is greatly appreciated. Other

         19  members have questions.

         20                 I recognize Council Member Koppell,

         21  and I also thank Council Member Koppell because we

         22  wanted to finish the other panel as quickly as we

         23  could because we knew that you had a time

         24  constraining. So, Council Member Koppell yielded his

         25  time to question the Administration, so I recognize
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          2  him first for questions for you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you. I

          4  will try and be brief.

          5                 On these alarms, how long do they go

          6  off for? Do you have different answers? I mean, each

          7  one can answer separately.

          8                 MR. TREBING: No, I believe it's three

          9  minute, or a minute and a half. We conform with the

         10  City of New York.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Three

         12  minutes.

         13                 MR. TREBING: Yes, the guidelines for

         14  the City of New York.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Do you vary

         16  that depending on where the car is sold?

         17                 MR. TREBING: No, that's the standard

         18  audible response. Headlights continue to flash for,

         19  I believe it's ten minutes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But the sound

         21  stops after three minutes?

         22                 MR. TREBING: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: On the

         24  Chrysler product.

         25                 MR. TREBING: Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is that true

          3  of the Toyota product?

          4                 MR. BRADLEY: Yes, it is.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Is that true

          6  of your product? I see. So basically you comply with

          7  the New York City requirements right now?

          8                 MR. TREBING: Exactly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And if I

         10  understand it, I think you've said this, but just so

         11  I understand it, vibration will not set off your

         12  alarm; is that correct?

         13                 MR. TREBING: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: They only set

         15  off if somebody actually gets into the car; what

         16  about breaking a window?

         17                 MR. TREBING: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That will not

         19  set off your alarm?

         20                 MR. TREBING: Correct.

         21                 On our vehicles, it has to be a hard

         22  trigger, and that's only opening the door without

         23  deactivating the alarm or opening the trunk lid.

         24                 MR. LABRIE: On BMW vehicles we have

         25  an interior motion center. So, if glass is broken,
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          2  then the alarm will go off.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Toyota, do

          4  you have --

          5                 MR. BRADLEY: Yes. We have had some

          6  systems that have a gas breakage center on them that

          7  will activate the alarm, as an optional.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And do you

          9  find that the people who purchase your cars, have

         10  you done any study as to whether they want to have

         11  an alarm in the cars that they purchase? Have you

         12  done any marketing studies of that sort?

         13                 MR. TREBING: I'm not particularly

         14  familiar with marketing studies particularly looking

         15  at the desirability of car alarms on low-end models.

         16  It is optional equipment. It's standard equipment on

         17  higher end models. I can find out and report back to

         18  the Council.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It would be

         20  interesting for us to know on the low end models how

         21  many people actually order them. We're looking at

         22  two sides of the story here, the people who want to

         23  have them in the car and the people who don't want

         24  them going off. And I think it would be important

         25  for us knowing how many people want them in the car.
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          2  I mean, they have the right to be represented by us

          3  and the Council, too, I suppose.

          4                 MR. TREBING: I will get exact

          5  information about the take rate on where it's

          6  optional equipment.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, I think

          8  that would be interesting.

          9                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Koppell.

         12                 I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.

         15                 I'd just like to inform the chair,

         16  actually, that Council Member Lopez and I have been

         17  discussing this over here.

         18                 Apparently, as you know, 72 percent

         19  of the car alarm installers are still installing

         20  illegal alarms at the public's request. So these

         21  alarms are out there and they're in cars. Now, our

         22  idea, and we'll be introducing a resolution to this

         23  effect, is to make a car alarm inspection part of

         24  the annual biannual, vehicle inspection by the

         25  State. Because these car alarms are out there and
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          2  you can't find them unless they go off. And as I

          3  said, the police do not have the manpower to respond

          4  to these car alarms. So, in order to pass

          5  inspection, you must have a legal car alarm system

          6  in your vehicle.

          7                 So, unfortunately, the City can't

          8  legislate that because DMV law and that's the state,

          9  so we will be introducing that resolution for this

         10  Committee's consideration.

         11                 As it relates to factory-installed

         12  alarms, this bill doesn't encompass those alarms, as

         13  far as I know. And there are some problems with

         14  those alarms but they relate to the incompetency of

         15  the people attempting to use them as they enter and

         16  exit their vehicles and continue to set off the

         17  alarm. I don't know if we can legislate against

         18  stupidity. I've tried. It doesn't work that well.

         19  But that's not actually, as far as I know, the car

         20  manufacturer's fault.

         21                 So, your alarms only go off when a

         22  vehicle is, a door is opened or a trunk is opened;

         23  is that correct?

         24                 MR. TREBING: The hard trigger,

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do you see

          3  any problem with after market alarms that would only

          4  go off if a door is opened or a trunk is opened? The

          5  technology is possible for that, correct?

          6                 MR. TREBING: Yes. Yes, the technology

          7  is possible.

          8                 In terms of, I'm not familiar with

          9  the wide variety of after market options that are

         10  available out there, or in terms of the installation

         11  procedure, I think quite candidly, as the

         12  manufacturer, it would be inappropriate for us to

         13  make a blanket statement, whether we support or

         14  oppose after market installation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm not even

         16  sure if I support that. I just would like to know

         17  what options are out there.

         18                 I know that we're pressed for time,

         19  so I'll yield the rest of my time. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         21  Council Member Vallone.

         22                 Council Member Liu.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you. I'll

         24  try to keep my questions brief.

         25                 All of your systems comply with our
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          2  rule in New York City that they cannot go off for

          3  more than three minutes.

          4                 MR. TREBING: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is it possible

          6  for you to recall when we instituted the

          7  three-minute rule? Was it based on your testimony,

          8  that all of your alarms didn't go off for more than

          9  three minutes. Was it something that you did after

         10  our law was passed, perhaps similar laws in other

         11  jurisdictions.

         12                 MR. TREBING: I honestly don't recall.

         13  I don't recall when that time parameter was

         14  introduced, insofar as Daimler Chyrsler products was

         15  concerned.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Now, one of you

         17  testified that your car alarm goes off for a minute

         18  and a half rather than three; is that not true? Or

         19  did I not hear that correctly?

         20                 MR. TREBING: No, I'm sorry. I

         21  couldn't recall if the New York City standard was a

         22  minute and a half or three minutes. My only point

         23  was that we do conform with the City of New York

         24  guidelines.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, are there
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          2  jurisdictions that have a limit of a minute and a

          3  half?

          4                 MR. TREBING: No. Not that I'm aware

          5  of.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Do other cities

          7  have different time limits?

          8                 MR. TREBING: Not that I'm aware of.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is it your

         10  understanding, and I'd like to direct this to all

         11  three representatives of all three companies, is it

         12  your understanding that cities throughout the

         13  country have a three-minute limit, as opposed to a

         14  different number of minutes?

         15                 Is three minutes the standard across

         16  the country?

         17                 MR. TREBING: I'm really not familiar

         18  with other municipal guidelines. I can only comment

         19  on transpiring in New York City right now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Then how do you

         21  as a manufacturer decide that you're going to set

         22  the limit at three? You're simply looking at New

         23  York City's law?

         24                 I mean, what's the reason that your

         25  alarm is cut off after three minutes?
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          2                 MR. TREBING: It's entirely possible

          3  that it was done to conform with New York City

          4  guidelines, because it was a very important market

          5  to all manufacturers. And if this guideline was set

          6  at three minutes for an audible time frame, that

          7  we'd --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, if we set it

          9  at one minute, you would be inclined to reduce your

         10  -- I mean, you may oppose it, that's fine, but if

         11  we do enact a one-minute limit, rather than a

         12  three-minute limit, then you as manufacturers would

         13  be inclined to reduce the amount of time that your

         14  alarm goes off to one minute.

         15                 MR. TREBING: We would look at that,

         16  frankly, in terms of the technology requirements,

         17  the technological requirements, to reprogram the

         18  existing module. We'd look at the business case

         19  involved with that, and evaluate if that regulation

         20  was forthcoming. But this particular regulation --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I'm not asking

         22  you about this particular -- I'm just asking you, if

         23  we did a one-minute time limit, would you be

         24  inclined to make your cars conform to that

         25  one-minute time limit?
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          2                 MR. SCHLEIN: Not necessarily so.

          3  Frankly, there would have to be a lot of ingredients

          4  in that decision-making process, to be very frank

          5  with you, as to not only cost but market studies and

          6  ultimate jurisdictional issues that would have to

          7  arise.

          8                 I can say I've done some of the

          9  research in advance of this hearing, Council member,

         10  and I know of no other municipal jurisdiction that

         11  has made the limit lower than three minutes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: How about the

         13  other manufacturers? Is there any inclination if we

         14  move this in one minute?

         15                 MR. BRADLEY: We like to keep our

         16  products as consistent as possible throughout the

         17  United States. We wouldn't be inclined to do

         18  something unique for the New York market and have it

         19  different for the rest of the United States.

         20                 MR. LABRIE: I'm just not in a

         21  position to give you an answer --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: That's fine.

         23                 Then let me ask you one last

         24  question. Maybe it's a statement rather than a

         25  question, which is that I am particularly disturbed
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          2  that some of your -- I don't think it's all true of

          3  all three of you manufacturers, but at least two of

          4  your manufacturers have no automatic ignition

          5  cut-off when there's a breach. The breach only

          6  causes this siren to blare off into the

          7  neighborhood, and not have an ignition cutoff. I

          8  think in this day and age, if you're saying that

          9  consumers demand anti-theft devices, it's pretty

         10  clear to me that the ignition cutoff is important to

         11  be part of that system, and that it's not that

         12  complicated to have the ignition cutoff, as

         13  something that gets activated once a breach is

         14  occurred.

         15                 MR. TREBING: Council Member, I

         16  appreciate that. And that was a comment that I made,

         17  and I apologize, my point was that I couldn't

         18  comment on it, not that we don't have it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Liu.

         23                 Council Member Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Your testimony

         25  has been very enlightening, and very important,
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          2  because listening to what you just said, it is my

          3  belief that if we pass the legislation we have in

          4  front of us, we will create two-tier system, and the

          5  two-tier system will be the system of people who can

          6  afford BMW, Chrysler and the high-level cars that

          7  can have their alarm, and the people who cannot

          8  afford that then cannot have the alarm in place.

          9                 And with this I am not questioning

         10  the quality of your cars or who can afford it or

         11  not, I'm just making a statement of fact, in regard

         12  to that. Would you agree with that?

         13                 MR. TREBING: I think that's a very

         14  valid point.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the more

         16  high-income you are, you will be able to have that

         17  alarm system, the lower income you are that you

         18  cannot afford that kind, you cannot have it.

         19                 MR. TREBING: That is a valid point,

         20  because on lower end models, it's optional

         21  equipment. And on higher end models it generally

         22  tends to be standard equipment.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How much it

         24  will cost to dismantle the system that exists as a

         25  standard right now into those vehicles?
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          2                 MR. TREBING: To disengage the

          3  existing?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes. I

          5  understood the explanation you gave us. As I said, I

          6  learned a lot today. But from the factory for

          7  example, the cars are made already and you have to

          8  sell them as they are. If you have to engage this,

          9  dismantle this, how much it will cost?

         10                 MR. TREBING: For vehicles that are in

         11  service right now? Or for future vehicles?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: For vehicles

         13  right now.

         14                 MR. TREBING: It would be extremely

         15  expensive, because if the technology exists to do

         16  it, to go back to prior model year vehicles that are

         17  on the road right now, in-service replacement tends

         18  to be very expensive and really not economically

         19  viable.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then that is

         21  out of the question.

         22                 MR. TREBING: Technologically it may

         23  well be, to go back to prior model years to develop

         24  a module or even find modules in service parts that

         25  do not have the built-in car alarm on them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And then what

          3  that said is we still will have cars with alarm no

          4  matter what.

          5                 MR. TREBING: That's exactly correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, that put

          7  that point in place.

          8                 Second point that I wanted to ask

          9  you. If Council Member Vallone and myself put

         10  together this resolution about making it as part of

         11  the inspection, that anybody who has an illegal

         12  installation of this particular devices, will not

         13  pass the inspection.

         14                 The manufacturers who are sitting in

         15  that table, the three of you I want to hear. Do you

         16  agree that this is a good policy to be put in place?

         17                 MR. TREBING: Daimler Chrysler would

         18  support that inspection.

         19                 MR. LABRIE: I think we would, and

         20  just want to make one statement that BMW does not

         21  recommend or approve of any after market accessories

         22  installed on our vehicles, and this includes alarm

         23  systems as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: One more person

         25  is left. Toyota.
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          2                 MR. BRADLEY: Yes. And we would

          3  support an inspection of our factory-installed

          4  systems.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No, no, that's

          6  not my question. My question is, of the legal

          7  installation that occurred, currently the ones that

          8  vibrate and does all this business, that on the

          9  inspection that we have annually, that we will ask

         10  the state to pass a law that will make the

         11  inspection condition for those cars not to have

         12  those alarms installed in there. They have to be

         13  removed if they want to pass the inspection.

         14                 MR. BRADLEY: I can't comment on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, then the

         16  other two manufacturers agree.

         17                 And my last question in regard to

         18  this is, I mean, we live in a City of different

         19  income levels, and if we we're going to begin

         20  creating a two-tier system here, that is a very

         21  dangerous precedent.

         22                 The question to you is that the

         23  manufacturer has explored the possibility of any

         24  other possible alarm system that will be as

         25  expected, as the one that contain noise out there,
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          2  that doesn't have noise?

          3                 MR. TREBING: I'm not familiar with

          4  the market research studies that were done or the

          5  internal product planning studies that were done

          6  that have evaluated other alarm or vehicle security

          7  options. So, I'm unable to comment what other

          8  options have been explored by the company. I'm

          9  sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then, Mr.

         11  Chairman. A question for you.

         12                 This is a point of clarification for

         13  me. Isn't it true that they also cannot install

         14  these alarm systems that have the noise and the

         15  changes of the horn connected to the alarm system

         16  and the lights that go on when they're on the

         17  streets; isn't that illegal also?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: My

         19  understanding, although I could always have Counsel

         20  to the Committee speak to this, it's my

         21  understanding that the alarm attributes that are

         22  illegal in New York City, would be those that I

         23  articulated earlier, if the phone rings for more

         24  than three minutes, if you have some kind of

         25  perimeter center, you have some sort of audible
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          2  status indicator that would cheer periodically, just

          3  to indicate the alarm was on, these are the

          4  attributes that I believe are illegal in New York

          5  City.

          6                 I don't know of any other illegal

          7  attributes of alarms beyond those.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then I will say

          9  in closing my remarks that Council Member Vallone

         10  and I will also include in our resolution, a

         11  resolution that will prohibit the connection of the

         12  horn to the alarm system, to the light system, that

         13  people out there are putting together in order to

         14  utilize all of this noise and all of this light that

         15  they use on the street, because I believe that that

         16  is part of this problem, and both of them will be

         17  included as illegal by the inspection procedure.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Council Member Lopez.

         21                 We're also joined by a valued member

         22  of this Committee, Council Member Gallagher. I know

         23  that you all have planes -- well, one has a driver,

         24  and two have planes, so I want to thank you very

         25  much for coming and sharing your time and talents
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          2  with us, in the case of Mr. Bradley comes from

          3  California, in the case that Mr. Trebing coming from

          4  Michigan. Paul, come back any time, you're right

          5  across the river. Stanley, always a pleasure to have

          6  you here. Thank you all very much. We appreciate you

          7  being here.

          8                 MR. TREBING: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We call next Dr.

         10  Andrew Karmen, the Sociology Department, John Jay

         11  College.

         12                 And after Professor Karmen, we have a

         13  panel that will be made up of Douglas Johnson, Chris

         14  Cook, Mel Ortner and Phil Lubell. That will be the

         15  next panel after this. And the panel after that

         16  would be Drew Robertson, Dennis Chen, Aaron

         17  Friedman, and Mateo Taussig. Thank you. Thank you,

         18  Professor.

         19                 Donna DeCostanzo, the Counsel to the

         20  Committee, will administer the oath and then you can

         21  state your name and proceed with your testimony.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         23  right hand.

         24                 In the testimony that you're about to

         25  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the
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          2  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          3                 PROFESSOR KARMEN: I do.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you. You have

          5  to press the button.

          6                 PROFESSOR KARMEN: I'm a Professor at

          7  John Jay College. I study Crime in New York City. I

          8  also study the problems of crime victims, and I'm

          9  sensitive to the concerns of people who are

         10  motorists who are being victimized.

         11                 Ever since the late 1970s, I've been

         12  looking for evidence, hard evidence, to try to

         13  determine which anti-theft devices work best.

         14                 The manufacturers of vehicles

         15  anti-theft devices make many claims about how well

         16  their products work. We've heard some of those

         17  claims today. We've heard from the representatives

         18  of the manufacturers that audible alarm systems are

         19  part of a whole peace of mind system. But as a

         20  criminologist I have to ask whether this marketing

         21  strategy is lulling owners into a false sense of

         22  security, if these devices don't really work as

         23  promised.

         24                 We've heard from representatives of

         25  law enforcement agencies that layers of protection
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          2  is the approach that's advocated. It's based on the

          3  assumption that something is better than nothing.

          4  And anything that slows down a thief or forces him

          5  to hurry up is of some value.

          6                 But in criminological research, we

          7  cannot accept conventional wisdom or advertising

          8  claims. You have to ask tough questions and adopt a

          9  skeptical stance, and insist show me, prove it,

         10  where's the evidence.

         11                 I haven't heard evidence today, and

         12  I've been looking ever since the 1970s for

         13  scientifically sound, hard evidence that would shed

         14  light on the effectiveness of various anti-theft

         15  devices, including, of course, today's topic,

         16  audible alarm systems. Not laboratory tests, but

         17  actual real world tests on the streets of big

         18  cities, including New York's meanest streets.

         19                 I have found very few studies that

         20  have tried to address the real world performance of

         21  vehicle anti theft devices, such as alarm systems,

         22  and none that were conducted in New York City.

         23                 Alarm systems do have a great

         24  potential to prevent victimization that protect the

         25  contents of the car, as well as the vehicle itself.
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          2                 But how do these systems stand up to

          3  real world attacks?

          4                 So, I'm suggesting that science needs

          5  to be brought into the picture, objective,

          6  impartial, neutral, criminological research, to be

          7  conducted. Alarm owners could be surveyed. That

          8  would be one line of attack, to determine how many

          9  motorists have success stories to share with the

         10  researchers in which the alarms scared away an

         11  intruder, who broke a window, forced a lock, who

         12  began to pry the car stereo system.

         13                 We only hear about anecdotes as in

         14  the 19th Precinct this morning. I have my own

         15  anecdote. My car was protected by an audible alarm,

         16  the thief was panicked by the sound of the alarm, he

         17  left behind screwdriver, my favorite tool in my

         18  workshop.

         19                 But that's just anecdotal evidence.

         20  How often does this really happen? So, a survey of

         21  alarm owners would be one approach.

         22                 Another study would be to address the

         23  issue of catching thieves, and then we would have to

         24  check police files. We have heard that there might

         25  be some problems in the way that the details are
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          2  maintained in the files, but can we identify how

          3  many incidents took place in which an arrest of a

          4  thief could be directly accredited to the sound of

          5  an alarm going off.

          6                 And, of course, are the thieves who

          7  are getting caught amateurs, joy riders or

          8  professionals? And was the theft an attempt to steal

          9  the entire vehicle, or just to get some of the parts

         10  from it?

         11                 I notice that in the 19th Precinct

         12  the arrest was of somebody stealing CDs, but the

         13  owners really lost more money, I'm sure, in the

         14  broken windows and the forced lock, than they did

         15  concerning the CDs.

         16                 And, finally, I would suggest a study

         17  of insurance company records, the major insurers in

         18  New York State, if they would cooperate, could help

         19  us.

         20                 Because whenever somebody installs an

         21  audible alarm, they are participating in a social

         22  experiment to see if the alarm really works. So, we

         23  could study two different sets or samples of cars,

         24  those that are protected by alarms and those that

         25  are not protected by alarms, comparable cars parked
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          2  on similar streets for comparable periods of time,

          3  to see whether these audible alarms really work. So,

          4  that's the theme of my remarks. We really need data.

          5  We need scientific evidence, but in the absence of

          6  that we can't accept the claims and so the

          7  incentives that are being offered to get motorists

          8  to buy the alarms are without foundation. That's my

          9  opinion.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you very much for your testimony. Thank you for

         12  being with us here today.

         13                 And as I indicated, the next panel is

         14  Doug Johnson and Chris Cook of the Consumer

         15  Electronics Association; Phil Lubell of Audiovox;

         16  and Mel Ortner of Directed Electronics.

         17                 And also, we have been joined by

         18  Council Member Brewer of Manhattan, a pleasure to

         19  have her here with us today.

         20                 Thank you. Thank you very much for

         21  being with us here today. We can understand how this

         22  hearing is of great interest to you, and we

         23  appreciate the opportunity to have you with us.

         24                 Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to the

         25  Committee, will administer the oath, and then you
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          2  can state your name for the record and proceed with

          3  your testimony, in whatever order you wish. In

          4  whatever order you wish, and at the completion of

          5  your testimony we'll ask you questions.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          7  right hand.

          8                 In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 (Witnesses sworn.0.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I just

         14  want to make sure, we have three statements, or four

         15  statements? I have from Consumer Electronics,

         16  Directed Electronics. Who am I missing? Audiovox.

         17  Sergeant, do we have a statement from Audiovox?

         18                 Okay, sorry, now I have everybody.

         19  I'm ready.

         20                 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         21  members of the Committee. My name is Doug Johnson. I

         22  am Senior Director of Technology Policy for the

         23  Consumer Electronics Association. The background of

         24  our association is included in our written

         25  statement, so I'll keep it brief.
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          2                 I do want to point out, though, that

          3  many CEA members who manufacture vehicle security

          4  products do so not only for the after market but

          5  also for the car manufacturers themselves.

          6                 Our market research shows that

          7  approximately 40 million US households have at least

          8  one car with an anti-theft system, and our research

          9  also shows that consumers are also three times more

         10  likely to own an anti-theft system in urban areas,

         11  than in non-urban areas.

         12                 We make four points in our testimony.

         13  First being that we believe New York City needs car

         14  alarms. The statistics that we found by contacting

         15  the City showed that there were over 27,000

         16  incidents of motor vehicle theft reported by the

         17  NYPD in 2002, and that compares to the figure we

         18  heard earlier of 2,200 or so noise complaints for

         19  car alarms that were reported during the year from

         20  June 1st, '03 to May 31st, '04. So, according to

         21  these statistics, a car is ten times more likely to

         22  be reported stolen during the course of the year in

         23  New York, than to be reported as a noise complaint,

         24  as a result of an audible car alarm.

         25                 We recognize the research and
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          2  statements of the New York City Police Department,

          3  but also the National Insurance Crime Bureau, which

          4  has said that car alarms are effective in preventing

          5  thefts, burglaries and vandalism.

          6                 Much like the NYPD, the NICB

          7  advocates the layered approach to anti-theft

          8  protection. The point was made earlier and we want

          9  to reiterate it, because our research has also shown

         10  consumers consider audible car alarms also as

         11  personal safety devices, and that the example there,

         12  of course, is a panic button on the remote that we

         13  talked about earlier.

         14                 Nine out of ten buyers say that they

         15  buy them for that reason. The second point we make

         16  in our testimony is that we believe that the current

         17  law should be enforced before passing new

         18  legislation.

         19                 The law itself has been reviewed, so

         20  I won't repeat that. There have been a number of

         21  well-publicized complaints leading up to this

         22  hearing, as a matter of fact. One being that

         23  somebody reported a car alarm sounding for six hours

         24  straight. There certainly is evidence out there that

         25  violates the current law. We believe that should be
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          2  enforced and we're in total agreement that that's a

          3  violation.

          4                 Third point is that we believe that

          5  prohibiting car alarms is impractical and arguably

          6  unconstitutional as well. It certainly presents

          7  several practical, economic and legal problems. On

          8  the practical side, prohibiting the sale and

          9  installation of audible car alarms within the City

         10  would not prevent the use of such devices.

         11                 Moreover, New York City residents

         12  would be free to go outside the City and make up

         13  purchases, move into the City from other locations

         14  with their existing car or buy used cars with

         15  preexisting systems.

         16                 In the economic side, City Council's

         17  prohibition on the sale of audible car loans would

         18  hurt retailers and consumers. Retailers, obviously,

         19  whose sales depend on these products would be hurt

         20  and forced to close business or cut back on business

         21  in the City.

         22                 It would also limit consumers choice

         23  of products. We heard earlier, it's an economic

         24  consideration as well, what kind of device or system

         25  you can afford. And the choice ought not to be
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          2  forced by the City government, we believe.

          3                 Finally, on the legal side, CEA

          4  believes that introduction No. 81 presents

          5  significant issues because of its proposal to ban

          6  after market products while exempting products that

          7  are sold with vehicles.

          8                 With this distinction, CEA believes

          9  the legislation presents an unreasonable restraint

         10  of commerce favoring one method of doing business

         11  over another.

         12                 Moreover, the partial ban creates a

         13  loophole to the extent audible car alarm products

         14  sold in the aftermarket could also appear as a built

         15  in system on a new vehicle.

         16                 Finally, we believe that the best

         17  solution to this problem is to let the market handle

         18  (sic) all of it, and it has already to the extent

         19  you find more sophisticated devices on the market

         20  that give you the option of disabling the audible

         21  part of providing options that reduce the chances

         22  and opportunities for false alarms, and some of the

         23  manufacturers here can certainly comment more

         24  specifically in their devices and the futures that

         25  go with them.
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          2                 We believe faulty installation is

          3  certainly a source of some false alarms, and on that

          4  point, during the past year since we've testified

          5  here, we've continued to support the industry's

          6  mobile electronic certification program for

          7  professional installation. There are now over 300

          8  certified installers in New York, and two training

          9  schools in the New York Metro area supporting this

         10  program.

         11                 So, again, good installation is

         12  important to reducing the chances for false alarms.

         13  We certainly welcome the opportunity to work with

         14  the City. From the discussion that was had at the

         15  beginning of the first panel, pointed to an

         16  opportunity to work with stakeholders, I hope the --

         17  I think it was the Department of Environmental

         18  Protection, would consider us a stakeholder. One of

         19  the things that the industry association does well

         20  is standards, and we would welcome input about how

         21  we could set forth a new standard in this area.

         22                 In closing, let me just say that we

         23  obviously consider this bill unfavorable to our

         24  interest. We recommend you consider the same for the

         25  reasons we've outlined concerning the use of these
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          2  devices as personal safety equipment, in recognition

          3  of the practical, economic and legal issues involved

          4  here, and also the impact it would have on local

          5  retailers and consumers.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 MR. ORTNER: Mr. Chairman, honorable

         10  Council members, my name is Mel Ortner. I'm with the

         11  law firm of Abelman Frayne and Schwab in New York

         12  City, and we represent Directed Electronics.

         13                 Directed is the largest after market

         14  manufacturer of vehicle alarms in the United States.

         15                 Not long ago there was a commercial,

         16  and it went something like, "This is not your

         17  father's Oldsmobile." I think this can be applied to

         18  modern alarm systems. A lot has happened since the

         19  introduction of alarm systems in the 1980s and

         20  1990s.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you move the

         22  microphone directly in front of your mouth, it will

         23  pick up a lot better.

         24                 MR. ORTNER: Okay.

         25                 With the advent of micro processors,
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          2  a whole host of technology became available, and I

          3  don't think time permits us to list every item, but

          4  let me mention one or two.

          5                 We have circuitry called "Nuisance

          6  prevention circuitry," and other manufacturers here

          7  have similar types of circuitry, and what this does

          8  is it monitors sensor activity and shuts down the

          9  sensor, if that sensor has been triggering three

         10  times in a set period.

         11                 So, what does that mean? It means a

         12  sensor that is malfunctioning, or for whatever

         13  reason is going off too often, will be taken off

         14  line with respect to that vehicle and won't go back

         15  on-line until its normal functioning is restored.

         16                 Simultaneously with doing that, we've

         17  been doing something which I think is very

         18  significant, and I don't really think it's been

         19  mentioned here today; and that is, when we program

         20  our alarms at the factory, the alarm sounding

         21  integral is no longer three minutes. We are

         22  programming the alarm sounding interval at 30

         23  seconds. So, that means if you do the math, and if

         24  you apply that to the nuisance prevention circuitry,

         25  you have a malfunctioning device, and even though
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          2  we're making them better, it's possible it could

          3  happen, you have a malfunctioning device, you're

          4  talking about a total now of 90 seconds of let's say

          5  nuisance, because nobody wants an alarm ringing in

          6  the middle of the night. I don't enjoy it either if

          7  it's under my window.

          8                 So, there are many other features,

          9  including two-way technology that allows an owner to

         10  be actually signaled and returned to his or her car,

         11  and rather than elaborate, I would just like to make

         12  a few other points.

         13                 I want to pick up on something that

         14  my CEA friend said, and that's the effect of

         15  training. Part of the problem for false alarms had

         16  been attributed to faulty installation. So, you can

         17  have the best equipment in the world, but if

         18  somebody doesn't know what they're doing when they

         19  put it in, it's not going to work that well. It has

         20  the potential for error.

         21                 And what the CEA has been doing is

         22  certifying installers, they have a program, they

         23  have testing, and the manufacturers directed alone

         24  last year, trained 5,000 people in the United

         25  States, 2- or 300 in the New York area that have
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          2  passed the CEA certification standard, which means

          3  that hopefully these installations are being done

          4  right. They have better installations, we have

          5  equipment that's more sophisticated, we have

          6  equipment that limits the amount of false alarms and

          7  the duration of the audible signal has been greatly

          8  reduced.

          9                 Now, I know we could spend a lot of

         10  time debating whether alarms are efficacious or

         11  non-efficacious. I will point out that FBI

         12  statistics tell us that car theft, and I think it's

         13  not just cars, it's also components, such as air

         14  bags, is the number one property crime in America.

         15  We know that police officers throughout the country,

         16  as well as the New York City Police Department that

         17  was here today, supports the continuation of the

         18  alarms, so does the insurance industry. They think

         19  it's valuable. So does the National Insurance Crime

         20  Bureau, and I acknowledge, we acknowledge that it's

         21  very hard to get statistics, because very few

         22  thieves hang around to answer a survey as to whether

         23  or not they were really deterred.

         24                 So, getting empirical evidence of how

         25  many thieves are actually often deterred by a car
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          2  alarm is hard to say. But I think it is true to say

          3  that the public feels that they work, and they're in

          4  very strong public demand.

          5                 I believe it was Councilman (sic)

          6  Lopez touched on the point that I wanted to

          7  reiterate, and that is the unfairness issue, meaning

          8  that a cast system would tend to be created in New

          9  York City among the haves and have-nots, because as

         10  we've heard here today, new car, upscale new car

         11  like Mercedes, BMW, Lexus, prewire their cars with

         12  factory systems, which would be difficult, if not

         13  impossible to circumvent and to bypass.

         14                 Somebody who simply can't afford a

         15  $60,000 car, but feels just as highly, is enamored

         16  with a $20,000 car and wants to protect it, in

         17  essence would be told by this legislation, I'm

         18  sorry, but you don't have the same right as a more

         19  affluent person. I think that's something that we

         20  really don't want for New York City.

         21                 So, just to sum up, I think that the

         22  industry is acting responsibly of its own accord to

         23  address problems with alarm systems.

         24                 I don't know that we'll ever get them

         25  to go away 100 percent, but I think we are
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          2  increasing the proper functioning, decreasing false

          3  alarms, and certainly decreasing the intervals of

          4  alarm signals, and I believe the insurance law

          5  correctly recognizes this, and, therefore, the

          6  proposed bill, and the proposed resolutions are not

          7  warranted.

          8                 I will add that the record, and I

          9  believe other manufacturers would be happy to work

         10  with committees in adjusting standards, as opposed

         11  to an outright ban.

         12                 Thank you very much for your time

         13  here this morning.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         15  you, sir.

         16                 MR. LUBELL: Good afternoon. My name

         17  is Phil Lubell. I'm the Director of Telemanix and

         18  Auto Security Products for the Audiovox Electronics

         19  Corporation. And I would like to thank the Council

         20  for the opportunity to speak today.

         21                 For those of you who don't know who

         22  Audiovox is, we manufacture and distribute vehicle

         23  security products under strict codes for both retail

         24  distribution and OEM factory sales by the car

         25  manufacturers.
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          2                 We voluntarily participate in ISO

          3  14001 Environmental Certification Program.

          4                 ISO 14001 program is environmentally

          5  friendly, in regards to both waste and noise

          6  management.

          7                 Audiovox is one of only 3,700

          8  companies in the United States who are certified in

          9  this program.

         10                 Our products feature the latest

         11  technology for false alarms and we do have several

         12  engineers who continually work to ensure that we

         13  bring the best and most reliable products to market.

         14                 First, as mentioned by my companion

         15  for DEI, we do offer two-stage shock centers.

         16                 As mentioned, the first stage detects

         17  the light impact. The second stage sounds the alarm

         18  for 30 seconds, for a maximum of three minutes.

         19                 We also do have a defective zone

         20  bypass, so if the door trigger was bad, the system

         21  is intelligent enough to know that it should

         22  disregard that point of entry. And we also do have

         23  available Citymode on several models, which have a

         24  longer pre-detect for limited siren rings of 15

         25  seconds.
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          2                 We also advocate and sponsor the

          3  industry initiative called MECP, Mobile Electronics

          4  Certification Program, to help ensure that vehicle

          5  security systems are installed properly.

          6                 I think a prime example of a properly

          7  installed system, last night at 1:00 we had some

          8  violent thunderstorms in the area, and I think we

          9  can all agree that was a pretty loud house rumbling

         10  noise.

         11                 My vehicle was parked outside of my

         12  house, and I was up watching the rebroadcast of the

         13  Yankee game and I did not have one false trigger.

         14  That's a great example for properly installed

         15  vehicle security systems.

         16                 We urge the Council to take the

         17  following issues into consideration. The number of

         18  businesses and employees which would be adversely

         19  affected by banning auto alarm sales installations.

         20  Ultimately, this would be a loss in tax loss to the

         21  City.

         22                 The increase in consumer insurance

         23  premiums that would rise due to the loss of

         24  discounts. Insurance discounts are proof that auto

         25  alarms work in deterring theft.
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          2                 Insurance companies will not offer a

          3  discount on comprehensive premiums if after market

          4  security systems do not deter theft of motor

          5  vehicles or their contents.

          6                 That's a key point. It's not just a

          7  theft of a vehicle, it's the contents of which are

          8  in it.

          9                 Our security devices function not

         10  only to prevent the theft, but also help reduce

         11  property crime so just protecting the vehicle

         12  contents.

         13                 Airbags and headlight assemblies are

         14  commonly stolen items which can cost anywhere from

         15  $400 to $1,200 to replace.

         16                 In my opinion, as an alternative to

         17  banning the sales and installation of audible auto

         18  security systems, the Council should look to

         19  implement the following:

         20                 Require MECP certified installers for

         21  all installations, and encourage the use of products

         22  that are manufactured in QS 9000 and ISO 14001

         23  facilities, as well as two-stage stock centers and

         24  defective zone indicators on all products.

         25                 This morning it was talked about
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          2  layered protection. We're a firm believer in layered

          3  protection, not just at the point of opening the car

          4  door to get into the vehicle.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, all.

          7                 Oh, did you have testimony as well,

          8  sir?

          9                 MR. COOK: Actually, yes. Chris Cook,

         10  from Consumer Electronic Association, and a master

         11  certified installer and one of the primary writers

         12  and executive editors of the certification program

         13  of which they speak. They brought me along for

         14  technical support, and after listening to a lot of

         15  the testimony, it appears to be much needed. So if

         16  there are any technical questions --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure.

         18                 MR. COOK: -- I should be able to

         19  answer.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 Now, as you know, before you came

         22  here you saw Intro. 81 and its ban of all after

         23  market devices. And when I started the hearing, I

         24  sort of put out my own logic that made some sense to

         25  me in that we do have a list of alarms now, or
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          2  features for alarms that are not legal for use in

          3  New York City.

          4                 And I thought that perhaps one way to

          5  proceed would be to get the sellers and the

          6  installers in line with what the users of the

          7  products already have to comply with now, and to

          8  make it illegal to sell or install an alarm that is

          9  illegal for use in New York City to a car that's

         10  registered in New York City.

         11                 What do you think of that?

         12                 MR. JOHNSON: This is Doug Johnson

         13  with the Consumer Electronics Association.

         14                 It's difficult to comment on

         15  something that's not written down, so I really want

         16  to limit my remarks on that.

         17                 One of the interesting points that

         18  was raised earlier, of course, was what could be

         19  done on the standard side with the industry to

         20  effect change over time. I don't think any of the

         21  solutions that have been talked about will result in

         22  an immediate reduction in car alarms going off. So,

         23  it's more of an evolutionary thing we're looking at

         24  anyway --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON: Which is where standards

          3  might be most effective. So, I would certainly offer

          4  CEA's resources in exploring that with the City's

          5  Department of Environmental Protection, and as well

          6  as the manufacturer members, explore what could be

          7  done on the standard front to perhaps establish new

          8  thresholds or increase the likelihood that products

          9  on the shelves will have a standardized limit to

         10  them, or limitations or features. But certainly

         11  that's something that's best handled on the market

         12  side, rather than be mandated, and that's why I

         13  think the industry would welcome --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm not

         15  following the whole market side.

         16                 MR. JOHNSON: In other words, rather

         17  than dictate a standard that would only apply to

         18  which there was a lot of objection in New York, the

         19  industry sets standards that are national, in some

         20  cases international, but at least national. In that

         21  way you address products that are sold in the

         22  perimeter of New York, rather than just products

         23  that are here, and as we know, things go back and

         24  forth, so it would be a more comprehensive way of

         25  addressing the issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but we kind

          3  of went down that road already, and we made a

          4  decision in 1993 that there were certain attributes

          5  to alarms, and I won't reiterate them again, the

          6  perimeter, whatever, that we just made it legal for

          7  use here in New York City. That was our first step.

          8  And they're still being sold and presumably, you

          9  know, you as manufacturers and you as union

         10  representatives, you have members of -- your members

         11  are essentially still, you know, marketing products

         12  in New York City that are illegal for use in New

         13  York City.

         14                 So, you know, it just seems that the

         15  logic that was compelling back in 1993 to make these

         16  certain features illegal for use in New York City,

         17  it seems to sort of, you know, to kind of make that

         18  vision more complete, we should have everyone doing

         19  the same thing. And, so, that the people who own

         20  these devices, who operate these devices, who have

         21  them installed in their cars, they are subject to

         22  the law, but the people who shall install them are

         23  not. And I saw this as a way to compliment the law

         24  that we did in 1993, and not go so far as what is in

         25  Intro. 81 which would ban the sale and installation
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          2  of the legal product, which doesn't make any sense

          3  to me to do that. So, I thought at a minimum we

          4  could make these sellers and installers, you know,

          5  abide by the same laws as people who use the alarms

          6  do.

          7                 MR. JOHNSON: I understand where you

          8  are coming from, Mr. Chairman. I think it would be

          9  interesting to gather the facts as to what products

         10  there are on store shelves right now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, because

         12  we've just got to do something. I mean, it's a very

         13  complicated problem. And also with respect to

         14  sellers who sell these alarms who are located in New

         15  York City, I personally, for one, wouldn't have any

         16  difficulty with someone who was in New York City,

         17  who has a shop in New York City, but if the customer

         18  comes from Nassau or Suffolk County or Westchester

         19  County where a perimeter, or a vibration, or any of

         20  this stuff is legal, then the shopkeeper in New York

         21  City should be able to sell this device to the

         22  Nassau County or Suffolk County resident where it's

         23  legal for use there. And I don't have a problem with

         24  that either. I don't think we should be in the

         25  business of telling, you know, local merchants not
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          2  to sell things that are legal for the consumer to

          3  use.

          4                 And, so, I thought that was a more

          5  reasonable and practical position, notwithstanding

          6  many advocates who are in the room here today, who

          7  very much want to ban all car alarms, and I see that

          8  as a complicated endeavor in the extreme, and I'm

          9  seeking to, you know, just kind of like take the

         10  next step down the road as we all further explore

         11  this issue.

         12                 I would also point out to your

         13  attention that there are people from DEP who are in

         14  the room, one or more of you have expressed a desire

         15  to be as stakeholders in this process to participate

         16  in the DEP-led study of the car alarms which

         17  presumably they will be endeavoring to do, you know,

         18  pursuant to the Mayor's recent proposal, which

         19  indicated that car alarms could be a source of

         20  inquiry and study on behalf of the City, so to the

         21  extent that your talents and knowledge can be

         22  brought to bear on what DEP is doing, into looking

         23  into this issue, I think it would be good for both

         24  of you guys to -- you guys being you guys and them

         25  guys, to do that.
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          2                 But any further comment on my

          3  perspective about doing something to sort of stem

          4  the tide of products that are illegal for use in New

          5  York City to be sold and distributed to cars

          6  registered in New York City?

          7                 MR. LUBELL: Two-fold. This is Phil

          8  Lubell from Audiovox Corporation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. LUBELL: We have several retail

         11  distributors that have locations not just in New

         12  York City but also reach out to the Nassau, Suffolk

         13  and Westchester, so regulating that on our behalf

         14  isn't something that we're really equipped to do.

         15                 As far as this law is concerned, I

         16  think we could all agree that if an alarm goes off

         17  because of an actual theft attempt or intrusion, we

         18  wouldn't object to that. I think the real issue is

         19  the false alarm. And false alarms happen from two

         20  different areas; poorly manufactured product, and

         21  poor installation. And my competition and I are

         22  advocates of both and we continually have several

         23  engineers working on it to continually update

         24  products to become very reliable.

         25                 Cars change. The electronics of the
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          2  cars change. We're able to adapt that. As I

          3  mentioned, we both have ties not only for after

          4  market, for OEM solutions at the factories.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          6  Please feel free to comment. Just identify yourself

          7  for the record before you speak.

          8                 MR. COOK: Chris Cook of the Consumer

          9  Electronics Association.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Speak real close

         11  to the mic. Real close to the mic.

         12                 MR. COOK: Recognizing some of the

         13  questions that were asked earlier, there seem to be

         14  a focus on removing factory alarms, and/or removing

         15  other alarms, focused on hard triggers, as opposed

         16  to soft triggers. And what I did is I did a feature

         17  matrix to find out of the major companies, major

         18  brands that are selling products in the New York

         19  metro area, the majority of them have features and

         20  functions for nuisance protection and even allow the

         21  consumer through the use of the remote or keyfob to

         22  disable a shock sensor or disable a particular area

         23  of the alarm should they be parked in an area where

         24  there's construction or something that might set it

         25  off.
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          2                 So, the feasibility of doing some of

          3  these things, it appears that the after market

          4  companies have actually gone above and beyond what

          5  the New York law has to accommodate features and

          6  functions to reduce noise and reduce nuisance based

          7  on their own customers calling and making comments

          8  on the product.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please continue.

         10                 MR. COOK: Yes, I just wanted to make

         11  sure you didn't have a question.

         12                 Again, reiterating the nuisance

         13  protection that's added to products, as well as some

         14  newer alarms coming with the Department with no more

         15  than 30 seconds of the alarm going off, that's

         16  certainly much less painful than the three-minute

         17  rule that's in effect for New York.

         18                 Also, as an installer, I can tell you

         19  something as simple as not grounding the wire

         20  properly, one little wire can cause the alarm to

         21  fall regardless of whether it is installed with

         22  sensors, without sensors that are offending for the

         23  New York City ban.

         24                 And one further comment. I notice

         25  going through this that a lot of the basis for some
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          2  of the arguments were based on information that is

          3  either lacking or somewhat, I don't want to say

          4  inaccurate, but if we had a tendency to be able to

          5  gather the information, and make a decision based on

          6  that information, it seems like a law would be much

          7  better.

          8                 In two other categories CEA has been

          9  proactive, one with mobile video, which New York

         10  State is looking at, where we developed model

         11  legislation that allowed for the product to be sold,

         12  but for it to be used for its proper use.

         13                 So, I would ask that we again work

         14  with DEP and with this Council to be able to help

         15  you with the legislation to get a better

         16  understanding of the industry and some of the

         17  innovations of the industry that could actually make

         18  a quieter New York City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20                 I'm going to turn it over to Council

         21  Member Brewer who has questions.

         22                 But from our perspective, the reason

         23  why we feel particularly compelled to try to, you

         24  know, try to do something is that there still are

         25  alarms being marketed and sold that are illegal for
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          2  use here in New York City, and also, when it comes

          3  to after market alarm systems, I mean by your own

          4  admission it's an industry where the success of the

          5  product is critically dependent on appropriate

          6  installation, something as minor as a wire that's

          7  not grounded or some sort of sensor that not hooked

          8  up in the right way can lead to wailing alarms all

          9  night, which is why I guess on some level there has

         10  been a lot of attention directed at the after market

         11  industry, because not all after market products are

         12  up to your standards. Not all installers are up to

         13  your standards, and there's a lot of junk out there

         14  and a lot of bad installers, and we hear it, and we

         15  really fell compelled to act.

         16                 So, help us out here. Work closely

         17  with DEP. You know, we'll stay in contact with you

         18  as we figure out what we're going to do from our

         19  side, because we're not a monolith. You know, John

         20  Liu has got a different version of this legislation

         21  than I do. So, we're having our own internal

         22  discussions.

         23                 So, with that said, I thank you for

         24  being here. I thank you for sharing your important

         25  perspectives with us, and I wish to recognize
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          2  Council Member Brewer who has questions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          4  much, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 I represent the West Side of

          6  Manhattan. I don't own a car, so I'm a little out of

          7  depth here, and probably the west side

          8  three-quarters of the noise complaints to the

          9  Mayor's 3-1-1, would be my guess, and they have also

         10  probably the lowest per capita, in terms of car

         11  ownership. So, just, you know, that's my district.

         12                 But I wanted to ask, because I don't

         13  know it, picking up on what the Chairman asked, that

         14  how do you go about working with the installers to

         15  be sure that they are certified.

         16                 I know that you don't control them

         17  all. I know that it's a range of individuals. But

         18  obviously it's just like anything else, if you have

         19  a group of people who are doing as the Chairman

         20  indicated, work that is shoddy, then it's going to

         21  reflect on everybody.

         22                 MR. COOK: Agreed. The certification

         23  program is a voluntary certification, but it's very

         24  extensive. Considerably more extensive than ASE is

         25  for the automotive industry in their electrical.
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          2  MECP being voluntary is supported by CEA member

          3  manufacturers and many of the retailers in your

          4  district.

          5                 Most importantly, there are some

          6  states that have required certification, though I

          7  don't advocate requiring certification, it does give

          8  a certain level of confidence when a consumer comes

          9  into a store, they know when they come out of the

         10  store with the product they know that it is

         11  installed properly and it's kind of a stamp of

         12  approval from our industry that we have trained them

         13  and certified them properly to install the product.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So that might be

         15  some way to have some guarantee, and then if a

         16  person went to a place where there was no

         17  certification of that installer, they would know

         18  that they were getting what they were paying for.

         19                 MR. COOK: Absolutely. As a former

         20  retailer, and again, MECP certified master

         21  installer, I've done countless thousands of

         22  installations on car alarms, and I worked in a shop

         23  that did five- to six-hundred vehicles per month. If

         24  I had customers coming back complaining that alarms

         25  were going off every night, I would be out of
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          2  business with warranty work.

          3                 So, it's best always to do it right

          4  the first time, in this industry and in any

          5  industry.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mr. Chairman,

          7  that might be some step in the right direction,

          8  certification, or at least trying to get the state

          9  to do it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, that was

         11  Council Members Vallone and Lopez who indicated,

         12  yes, we might even include this -- I mean, they push

         13  to have this included in the New York City

         14  inspection.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And the other

         16  question I have is, do all after market car alarms

         17  comply with the City's requirement that alarms

         18  terminate within three minutes and are only

         19  activated with that remote device that you have used

         20  many times but I have never used?

         21                 MR. COOK: Speaking on behalf of many

         22  manufacturers with the CEA, I can say that at least

         23  50 percent of the market share or the market share

         24  leaders, when I looked at the feature matrix, comply

         25  with the current New York City law. Going outside of
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          2  CEA membership I would not be able to properly

          3  comment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: How do you

          5  think we could move that other 50 percent to be more

          6  within the three minutes?

          7                 MR. COOK: Well, again, I'm not

          8  completely familiar with the current law, but it

          9  seems to be a breakdown at the retailer that's

         10  selling the product, and I don't know if the

         11  retailer that's selling the product is accountable

         12  for putting the product in that offends or causes

         13  the problem.

         14                 I think consumers, when they purchase

         15  an alarm in the New York City area, feel that when

         16  the alarm is installed in their vehicles, it

         17  certainly should comply and many of them wouldn't

         18  ask questions, just assuming that a legitimate

         19  retailer would follow the law.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

         21  you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         23  you, gentlemen, for being here with us. We

         24  appreciate getting your perspectives. The

         25  individuals from DEP are sitting in the audience.
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          2  They can make themselves known to you. So, Jerry, if

          3  you could just make yourself known to the gentlemen

          4  that are here, that would be great.

          5                 Thank you for coming and being with

          6  us today. We appreciated hearing your perspectives,

          7  and thank you.

          8                 And the next panel: Mateo Taussig,

          9  Transportation Alternatives; Drew Robertson of the

         10  Center for Automotive Security; Dennis Chen of DJ

         11  Auto Security Accessories; and Aaron Friedman of

         12  Transportation Alternatives.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you for being here today. We appreciate your

         15  patience in waiting to give us the benefit of your

         16  views.

         17                 Donna DeCostanzo, the Counsel to the

         18  Committee, will administer the oath, and then you

         19  can proceed with your testimony. I believe we're

         20  waiting for one more panel member.

         21                 Okay, Donna, it's all yours.

         22                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         23  right hand.

         24                 In the testimony that you're about to

         25  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the
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          2  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          3                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you for being with us here today.

          6                 As we've done with the other panels,

          7  we will be happy to -- oh, okay, I have to make an

          8  announcement that the Parks Committee that was

          9  scheduled to meet here at 1:00 p.m. will be next

         10  door in the Committee Room.

         11                 Anyone here for the Parks Department,

         12  for the Parks Committee, that will be next door.

         13                 MR. ROBERTSON: My name is Drew

         14  Robertson. I am the Director for Automotive Security

         15  Innovation. We're a research group that represents

         16  manufacturers of security devices to prevent auto

         17  theft, truck hijacking and cargo theft.

         18                 As a New Yorker I know firsthand

         19  about the noise pollution caused by car alarms.

         20                 However, I won't address the

         21  environmental impact of the car alarm ban, but

         22  rather the likely improvement in automotive security

         23  that could follow the enactment of this bill.

         24                 Simply put, car alarms don't stop car

         25  theft. They can be easily bypassed by car thieves.
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          2  Most alarms are false alarms and are usually

          3  ignored. Even when an alarm is genuine, police

          4  response is too late. I can give you a good anecdote

          5  about that from last Saturday myself.

          6                 However, relentless marketing by

          7  alarm manufacturers has given consumers the false

          8  impression that car alarms have value and the louder

          9  the better. In fact, alarms give owners a false

         10  sense of security that can lead to reckless and

         11  unsafe behavior.

         12                 Elsewhere in the world car alarms are

         13  held in disdain by government regulators and

         14  insurance risk specialists.

         15                 In Europe, Australia, South Africa,

         16  Canada, immobilizers have been mandated or

         17  subsidized. Because it is so difficult to hotwire a

         18  car in Europe now, as a consequence, attention is on

         19  anti-car jacking and vehicle tracking technology.

         20                 Car alarms are a technology from the

         21  1980s whose time has passed.

         22                 However, let's not forget why owners

         23  buy car alarms in the first place - to protect their

         24  cars from theft, to be sure autotheft in New York is

         25  not the problem it was 15 years ago.
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          2                 But we still estimate that the cost

          3  of car theft in New York is $250 million a year to

          4  car owners and to taxpayers.

          5                 We can credit better policing,

          6  stronger economies, changing demographics and

          7  anti-theft technology from the OEMs. It's not just a

          8  coincidence that the last spike in car theft

          9  coincided with the crack epidemic. The previous one

         10  with the earlier heroin epidemic in the late 1970s.

         11  As crack addiction declined, so did auto theft.

         12                 While car theft is not a big problem

         13  here in New York right now, it's reaching epidemic

         14  proportions in parts of the west, especially states

         15  in the west like Washington and Arizona that have

         16  surging meth addiction. Car theft and identity theft

         17  are the two most reliable cash resources for meth

         18  addicts, and believe me, the meth problem is coming

         19  to New York City, ask law enforcement in Upstate, in

         20  New Jersey or Long Island.

         21                 When meth comes to New York, and it

         22  will, car theft and property theft will soar. Older

         23  cars especially will be sitting ducks.

         24                 Fortunately, there are after market

         25  security devices that unlike alarms are quiet and
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          2  effective theft deterrent. Auto theft fell by 50

          3  percent in Australia after immobilizers were

          4  mandated.

          5                 Unfortunately, here in the US car

          6  alarms have a slow consumer understanding and

          7  acceptance of this new technology, as was indicated

          8  by today's testimony.

          9                 We hope this law will send a message

         10  to consumers that car alarms are obnoxious, and

         11  worthless, and that there are better alternatives.

         12                 We support this legislation. We ask

         13  the City Council to use its voice, not only to rid

         14  the City of car alarms, but also to promote proven

         15  auto security technology. We ask that noise code

         16  revisions include aggressive enforcement measures to

         17  quite remaining alarms in the City, and we ask your

         18  support in Albany to replace insurance rate

         19  discounts for alarms with discounts for

         20  immobilizers.

         21                 Eliminating car alarms is the

         22  necessary first step for significant improvement in

         23  automotive security here in New York. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Robertson.

          3                 MR. CHEN: My name is Dennis Chen. I'm

          4  the president of DJ Auto Security --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me. If

          6  you would just hold on a second. I don't have your

          7  statement in front of me.

          8                 MR. CHEN: I don't have one.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, fine.

         10                 In that case, I'll just -- I could

         11  take my glasses off then. I'll just listen to you.

         12                 MR. CHEN: I'm sorry.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But you've got

         14  to speak right into the microphone so I can hear

         15  you.

         16                 MR. CHEN: All right.

         17                 My name is Dennis Chen. I'm the

         18  president of DJ Auto Security and Rock Industries of

         19  Queens. Right next to Shea Stadium. DJ Auto has been

         20  in business for more than 17 years.

         21                 I know exactly what's going on for

         22  ten years ago, and it is much better now for car

         23  auto theft. There's numerous reasons for that. I

         24  would give very little credit toward audio silent

         25  alarm itself.
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          2                 I mean, I use a car alarm and

          3  immobilizer and a GPS tracking. Rock Industry

          4  Automobiles also manufacturers some safety devices.

          5  The unbreakable break lock; and we also have a

          6  non-audio alarm. A paging system.

          7                 Since ten years ago to now,

          8  technology has been improved. Ten years ago, all

          9  available to us was audible alarm, and didn't do

         10  that much. And actually, the silent alarm ten years

         11  ago til now, actually we can eliminate the silent

         12  alarm, which also will protect the vehicle. Silent

         13  alarm does not stop car theft. They are easy to be

         14  bypassed.

         15                 I can shut off most car alarm within

         16  ten to 15 seconds, and maybe take five minutes to

         17  hotwire a car, because the most silent alarm, they

         18  come with this override switch. All you've got is to

         19  push the switch. Siren would be off.

         20                 My customer always think alarm works

         21  and the louder the better, but they need to be

         22  educated. Immobilizing a mechanical device, such as

         23  a break lock, are much more effective in stop car

         24  thief. Most New York do not know alternative, only

         25  thing they know is alarm just making noise.
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          2                 As I say, I sell car alarms. This

          3  legislation will cost me to lose sales. A full ban

          4  on old and new car alarm will be better for

          5  installer, because we will have to replace siren

          6  with pager or alarm with immobilizer.

          7                 There are alternatives to the audible

          8  alarm. Audible alarm basically just make the noise

          9  and everybody can look that way. But like a paging

         10  system, or the break lock will actually will prevent

         11  them installing it, the pager page the owner itself,

         12  will have much better chance to call the police than

         13  pass by to call the police.

         14                 In New York, to replace the old alarm

         15  with immobilizer, we will have a quiet and safe City

         16  and it will give a big boost to the mobile

         17  electronic installations.

         18                 I really don't think we lost a lot of

         19  business, but it also will gain other business to

         20  support us.

         21                 If you wish, I can answer any of your

         22  questions about the car alarm and installation for

         23  immobile.

         24                 And by the way, we also do the cargo

         25  state insurance inspection.
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          2                 Mostly discount giving better

          3  insurance, either it's the Lojack or the passive

          4  disabled device, not audio alarm system. Audio alarm

          5  system really just make the noise, not stopping any

          6  thief, just stopping to take the car away.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, Mr. Chen, I appreciate you being here.

         10                 MR. TAUSSIG: Good afternoon, Chairman

         11  Gennaro. Thank you for the opportunity to be here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You've got to

         13  speak loud and speak right into the microphone.

         14                 MR. TAUSSIG: Okay?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Like right like

         16  that, yes.

         17                 MR. TAUSSIG: Good afternoon. Thank

         18  you for the opportunity to be here.

         19                 My name is Mateo Taussig. I am an

         20  attorney. I have been consulting with Transportation

         21  Alternatives. I was a co-author of the report we

         22  issued last year. My co-author is here beside me,

         23  and I've done a lot of illegal work on this issue.

         24  I've written two memoranda, and as legal issues to

         25  come up, I would urge you to consult those, because
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          2  they're pretty comprehensive, and in the legal

          3  discussions that I have heard, I feel that all the

          4  bases are still covered in two memoranda, one on

          5  commerce clauses, and another on the state and city

          6  regulatory power. And today I'd like to frame the

          7  issue just a little bit differently than it's been

          8  framed thus far, and then I'd like to briefly touch

          9  on a couple of the legal issues to remind the

         10  Committee.

         11                 As the City Council is no doubt

         12  aware, the 2000 census indicates that in all the

         13  five boroughs, 54 percent of households do not own a

         14  car.

         15                 This makes New York City unusual in

         16  the United States, where cars typically far

         17  outnumber people.

         18                 The question that I would pose to the

         19  City Council is have we crafted policy that responds

         20  to this unique urban texture where it's pedestrians,

         21  mass transit, and other modes of transport that are

         22  in the majority.

         23                 I think this statistic that it's

         24  really the majority that doesn't own a car is sort

         25  of a unique fact that requires a response, because
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          2  it really is a minority that's making use of public

          3  space and not only making use of it, which I'm sure

          4  has many benefits and detriments, but in addition

          5  making a lot of noise while they're doing it.

          6                 When you break it down by persons who

          7  own their residence, householders, if you look at

          8  the census. A percentage of all owners of their

          9  residence, of that category 20 percent does not own

         10  a car. So, you have 70 percent of some owners owning

         11  a car in New York City.

         12                 For renters it's 70 percent do not

         13  own. So, to assume some discussion about creating a

         14  cast system that poor people won't have access to

         15  factory installed alarms, I would suggest that in

         16  fact the tendency would cut in exactly the opposite

         17  direction. What we have is a scenario where

         18  home-owners, minorities owning the cars, and the

         19  vast majority don't own the cars, don't make use of

         20  this public space in this way, and certainly don't

         21  participate in including the ambient environment.

         22                 So, the issue, as I would like to

         23  frame it, taking -- one other point I would like to

         24  make is, if you look at the regulatory structure,

         25  the City Council has power over the use of the
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          2  streets. There is no God-given right, despite what

          3  we might think, to park your car wherever to store

          4  it on the streets. These are all grants, expressed

          5  grants the City and state have allowed, and I think

          6  that they deserve serious reconsideration.

          7                 The situation we now have is not only

          8  a grant to minorities to use a valuable resource,

          9  the issue on today's focus is how those enjoying

         10  this grant actually reach out and further offend the

         11  public piece with noise-making devices.

         12                 So, that's just one way I would

         13  suggest in framing this issue. On the one hand you

         14  have minorities owning cars, and at the same time

         15  the City Council has power over this regulation of

         16  space.

         17                 And that's a different perspective

         18  than one who focuses solely on noise, but I think it

         19  might be a perspective that's valuable to consider.

         20                 I'd like to turn just quickly to the

         21  number 81. I've reviewed this bill and I'm of the

         22  opinion that it's a permissible action authorized

         23  under traditional conceptions of home rule, the

         24  City's police power, and under explicit statutory

         25  authorization by the State. I don't believe this
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          2  bill raises any interstate commerce concerns.

          3                 I'm happy to get into the detail on

          4  these legal issues that have been raised in

          5  testimony by some of the spokespersons for the

          6  installation, after market installation folks, I

          7  don't think there is really any merit there.

          8                 The core issue in the commerce clause

          9  debate is, the aim in general is to preserve a

         10  national market as the 1nd circuit in Brown and

         11  Williamson for competition undisturbed by

         12  preferential advantages conferred on a state upon

         13  its own resident. And that's really not at issue

         14  here. It's an issue of banning an industry in your

         15  own area. So, you're not conferring a preferential

         16  advantage on your people, in fact you're creating a

         17  disadvantage, and that's not the violation of the

         18  commerce clause.

         19                 So, I would urge the Council to, if

         20  there are any legal issues I'm very happy to discuss

         21  them. I don't think they're very serious but I'm

         22  happy to debate it. And I also urge the

         23  consideration of these more general demographic

         24  facts drawn from the census that I mentioned, the

         25  fact that it really is not the majority that
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          2  benefits from cars. As I said, 54 percent of

          3  households in New York do not own a car. And if you

          4  look at those who rent, in fact, it's much higher.

          5                 And also this Council does have power

          6  over the use of this public space.

          7                 I think it's a privilege that's been

          8  doled out to car owners to use the streets as

          9  storage for their cars, and it hardly seems to be

         10  asking too much that in addition to taking that

         11  public space, that it not be used to actually reach

         12  out and harm the public in any further way.

         13                 Thank you very much. I look forward

         14  to any questions you might have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 Before I begin my questions I'd like

         18  to recognize the presence of a valued member of the

         19  Committee, Bill DeBlasio, from Brooklyn. It's a

         20  pleasure to have you with us here today, Bill, as

         21  always. And Mr. Taussig, I'm just trying to figure

         22  whether you support -- oh, there is another

         23  testifier. Okay, please.

         24                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 My name is Aaron Friedman, I'm

          3  Project Manager at Transportation Alternatives.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do I have a

          5  statement from you? Did you pass out a statement?

          6                 MR. FRIEDMAN: We did have a stack

          7  there, we can get to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If we have a

          9  copy of the statement, I just thought we would kind

         10  of read along.

         11                 I got it.

         12                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Okay. We were here

         13  almost exactly a year ago on the first hearings of

         14  Introductions 81 and 115, and at the time we

         15  explained why a ban on noisy aggravating car alarm

         16  sirens is clearly in the public interest, the noise

         17  makes it difficult for New Yorkers to sleep, or work

         18  or learn or read, and there has been no evidence

         19  then or presented today that these alarms actually

         20  deter theft.

         21                 At the same time, motorists can save

         22  money on insurance by switching to the inexpensive

         23  silent devices that actually work.

         24                 So, we're pleased to see this Council

         25  conclude, many members conclude that it's times to
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          2  get rid of these alarms, but the bill before us,

          3  though well intentioned, would do almost nothing to

          4  stop car alarm noise.

          5                 Under Introduction 81, sirens can

          6  continue to blare, so long as they were installed

          7  outside of New York City, and since most New York

          8  drivers buy their cars outside of the five boroughs,

          9  and have alarms fitted at the dealership, very few

         10  cars would actually be affected by any of this. At

         11  the same time, all of the existing alarms on the

         12  street would continue to go off.

         13                 So, a real solution to this problem

         14  would require a ban on the use of car alarms, such a

         15  ban could be simply and practically enforced. The

         16  police could ticket without hesitation and without

         17  waiting for three minutes, which I think they don't

         18  actually do. Drivers could comply without confusion

         19  about what sort of alarm is correct, and citizens

         20  could apply the social pressure that has been used

         21  in the pooper scooper law, or other things where the

         22  law is very clear, and neighbors are sort of able to

         23  tell their neighbors, you know, this is not

         24  acceptable.

         25                 So, the reason we're not considering
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          2  the complete car alarm ban seems to be laid out in a

          3  statement by the speaker two weeks ago, that said

          4  that the Council staff found that while, and I'm

          5  quoting, found that while after market, that is not

          6  installed at the factory, audible alarms are fairly

          7  easy to disengage, such as not the case for audible

          8  alarms installed at the factory.

          9                 According to car makers like Ford,

         10  Daimler Chrysler, BMW, Mitsubishi, factory installed

         11  alarms are considered part of the vehicles central

         12  wiring and monitoring system, and we heard this

         13  today. To disable such an alarm, one would have to

         14  disable the horn itself, which raises serious

         15  federal regulatory compliance issues and other

         16  matters.

         17                 We think this is a fundamental

         18  misunderstanding. It seems that the thing that they

         19  believe it's too difficult and expensive for

         20  consumers to rewire their cars to disable

         21  factory-installed alarms, but this is beside the

         22  point, the real question is can drivers switch off

         23  their alarms while parked on New York City streets.

         24  And the answer overwhelmingly is yes.

         25                 Nearly every car alarm can be
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          2  deactivated through a valet procedure, active arming

          3  or locking the door manually. So, all the discussion

          4  we heard from the car manufacturers about how you

          5  would have to spend $500 to rewire your car, that

          6  has nothing to do with this issue.

          7                 Now, just to clear things up, I

          8  actually made some photocopies from car manuals,

          9  from some of the cars that we were actually

         10  discussing and some of the cars that the Council's

         11  staff mentioned here. You can see that 2004 PT

         12  Cruiser, you have copies in your packet. There is a

         13  little diagram and it says security system manual

         14  override. The system will not arm if you lock the

         15  doors, if you're using the manual door lock plunger,

         16  in this little picture here. It seems pretty easy,

         17  and people have been locking their cars this way for

         18  decades, actually, and that seems to work.

         19                 For those Jeep Grand Cherokee, which

         20  had the five doors and they were saying, you know,

         21  you have to walk around the car, however, get the

         22  hatchback. In this case it says you may disarm the

         23  system by unlocking the driver's door with the key

         24  and then locking it. The door will be locked but

         25  then the security alarm will not arm.
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          2                 You don't have to walk around the car

          3  at all. You turn the key, they'll turn it back the

          4  other way, the doors lock, the alarm is off.

          5                 That's the 2004 Jeep Grand Cherokee,

          6  Owners Manual, page 24. Then we come to Ford which

          7  was also mentioned in the statements in the Council,

          8  and actually there are two different ways to disarm

          9  the alarm, one is using the same kind of key

         10  procedure I just talked about. The other is

         11  something called a valet, valet procedure. Here is a

         12  picture of it, and basically you just take the key

         13  out of the door, out of the ignition and in sort of

         14  turning the key all the way you turn it part of the

         15  way. And that will disable the alarm. There is no

         16  effort involved. These cars are designed to be

         17  turned off like this, and any suggestion to the

         18  contrary in these models is false.

         19                 Now, I have some other ones here. But

         20  it's true. There are few models of cars where it is

         21  difficult to switch off the alarm. We've found that

         22  Mitsubishi is one such model. But for owners for

         23  such cars, we feel that a ban on car alarm use is

         24  still reasonable. Drivers would only be subject to a

         25  fine if their alarm went off, which on a properly
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          2  functioning alarm is supposed to happen only when

          3  the thief is tampering with the car. If the alarm

          4  truly is working properly, its owner ought to be

          5  willing to run the risk of a ticket, if it means

          6  alerting the attention of the police in such a case.

          7                 So, this ban would actually reduce

          8  the number of alarms and increase the police

          9  presence for the numbers that are there, which would

         10  benefit the drivers.

         11                 Now, we understand that the Mayor's

         12  noise code provisions call for the creation of the

         13  study and the feasibility of the car alarms and we

         14  support this effort. And we will support any

         15  proposal that we would actually ban car alarms

         16  coming from the Council.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Friedman,

         18  have you been here for the whole hearing, because it

         19  seems that your testimony and your assertions

         20  completely contradict the sworn testimony that we

         21  heard earlier today, and also contradicts copious

         22  research that Council staff has performed, you know,

         23  prior to this hearing. And so your continued

         24  assertion of things that are not really assertable,

         25  I don't think is productive.

                                                            166

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Well, if --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: I'm still going.

          4                 And also, it is certainly the case

          5  that in requiring of car owners to turn off their

          6  alarms if they were able to do so, and, again,

          7  that's a very, very complicated question, but if

          8  they were successful in doing that, they would also

          9  be turning off their immobilizers and other

         10  anti-theft attributes that will make the cars

         11  secure.

         12                 And, so, I just don't understand how

         13  you can continue to assert things that don't really

         14  hold water. And, so, now of course, you're going to

         15  want to respond and you can do that, but I think

         16  that perhaps a more productive approach would be to

         17  work in concert with the Council and the

         18  Administration who are endeavoring to get a handle

         19  on noise pollution in general in the City, and also

         20  specifically with car alarms which we believe on

         21  this Council are a key component of noise pollution,

         22  and if there is an arm of City government that has

         23  done a real interest in the car alarm legislation in

         24  doing what we can, it would be this Committee and

         25  this Council. So, I would urge you to work with us,
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          2  but in order for us to have the kind of productive

          3  relationship that I think we all seek, you know, we

          4  have to see facts for what they are and the reality

          5  for what it is and move forward based on our

          6  rational understanding for what is and isn't

          7  possible.

          8                 So, you have the floor.

          9                 MR. FRIEDMAN: I stand by the

         10  statements I made about the cars I spoke of and the

         11  ones that were discussed in this statement by the

         12  Council.

         13                 With the Toyotas, it's true, they

         14  said the immobilizers would not activate if you

         15  disabled the alarm, and I haven't looked at that

         16  particular model of cars. So, I don't know where the

         17  story is there.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Counsel is

         19  relating to me the situation with certain five-door

         20  models that have only -- that don't have manual

         21  locks or whatever, only have electronic locks and

         22  therefore on the fifth door to lock the other four

         23  doors and to disable the immobilizer, any ignition

         24  cut-off, and the alarm system. It could leave the

         25  back door of the car completely unprotected, and,
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          2  you know, while we all are in favor of a quieter

          3  City, it's just impractical to believe that people

          4  are going to do that.

          5                 We are a vast city, a complicated

          6  city but we're also part of the City of New York,

          7  and part of the United States, and there's going to

          8  be a lot of difficulty for manufacturers to

          9  manufacture strictly for the New York City market.

         10                 And, so, we continue to be available

         11  to work with you. But by citing a couple of

         12  examples, a couple of models that would work into

         13  your paradigm, you know, ignores the rest of the

         14  models for which there is no easy fix.

         15                 And, so, you know, I think we have

         16  appropriately directed our attention as to segments

         17  of the car alarm, you know, marketplace that are

         18  more, that are more prone to false alarms or

         19  whatever. That is the aftermarket, alarm market, and

         20  so this is where we're seeing our efforts because of

         21  all of the impediments that we have thus encountered

         22  with dealing with the factory installed models.

         23                 You know, this has been our position,

         24  and nothing that you've brought to the table so far,

         25  you know, dissuades us from the fact that we believe
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          2  we're on the only practical course that we can take.

          3  And, so, if you care to respond to that, you can do

          4  so.

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Well, the models I

          6  chose were the ones that the Council said and cited

          7  as being problematic. That's why I looked into

          8  those.

          9                 So, it wasn't a case of my

         10  cherry-picking examples, the Council has had to cure

         11  cars that have had difficulty with turning off the

         12  alarms.

         13                 When I looked into other models of

         14  cars, it seemed like most of them could be turned

         15  off.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Council Member

         17  DeBlasio, do you have any questions?

         18                 Okay, thank you very much for being

         19  here today. We appreciate your perspective.

         20                 Our next witness is Micah Sheveloff,

         21  from MERA.

         22                 Hi. Thank you for being with us here

         23  today.

         24                 Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to the

         25  Committee, will administer the oath and then you can
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          2  proceed with your testimony.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          4  right hand.

          5                 In the testimony that you're about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. SHEVELOFF: I do.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 MR. SHEVELOFF: My name is Micah

         11  Sheveloff. I represent the Mobile Electronic

         12  Retailers Association.

         13                 We wanted to say that we oppose this

         14  particular legislation, however, we are highly aware

         15  and sympathetic to the issue of automotive,

         16  alarm-related disturbances.

         17                 There has been a lot of discussion

         18  regarding the false triggering of audible alarms.

         19  The security industry clearly has made great strides

         20  in improving these products, the associated sensors,

         21  triggers, new technologies have been introduced that

         22  provide greater degree of reliability, and reduces

         23  the frequency of false alarms to address these very

         24  issues.

         25                 Many newer alarms have options that
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          2  will notify the consumer of potential theft. Most

          3  systems will shut off a faulty sensor and may be

          4  causing a false alarm.

          5                 One of the major reasons that

          6  customers install a vehicle security system isn't

          7  solely to protect the vehicle from theft but protect

          8  the contents of the vehicle.

          9                 We think that a law preventing

         10  consumers from protecting the contents of the

         11  vehicle would potentially outrage consumers.

         12                 There is no other known alternative

         13  currently for that type of protection, so, you know,

         14  MERA is concerned that consumers will have a means

         15  to protect the items that are inside the car.

         16                 There is an assumption that

         17  automobile alarms are merely a nuisance and a noise

         18  maker.

         19                 In our experience, an attempt has

         20  been made to steal personal property from a vehicle,

         21  the alarm sounds and the thief often runs away.

         22                 So, how many times has that happened

         23  where someone looks outside and sees nobody and

         24  perceives that as a false alarm. Where it very well

         25  may have been the alarm in doing its job in scaring
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          2  off the thief. And as the police and others have

          3  stated today, that data is extremely hard to gather.

          4  So there may be a high degree of effectiveness that

          5  we haven't been able to document.

          6                 If the proposed ordinance is passed,

          7  we are confident that it would affect New York City

          8  retailers in ways that have not yet really been

          9  discussed. There is a potential loss of jobs due to

         10  the loss of sales of audible vehicle alarms, silent

         11  alarms are not an option for consumers who want to

         12  protect their personal property as I said. We are

         13  going to ask consumers who install a silent alarm to

         14  confront the thief, which is potentially dangerous.

         15                 Many of our retailers state that a

         16  significant portion of their business is vehicle

         17  security systems, and this potential loss of revenue

         18  could possible cause them to reduce their staff.

         19                 The loss of jobs could affect the

         20  City in various ways including unemployment, loss of

         21  sales tax revenue, and potential corporate taxes for

         22  the state of New York.

         23                 Another related loss. Consumers may

         24  not choose to purchase other automotive accessories,

         25  such as audio systems, navigation systems, video
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          2  systems, if they can't buy a system to protect them.

          3  So, the alarm systems, any ban on after market alarm

          4  systems may actually cause the loss of sales of

          5  other automotive-related categories.

          6                 The Retailers Association also

          7  believes that the legislation is written in such a

          8  way that it excludes the auto-makers factory

          9  installed security systems leaving only the after

         10  market to suffer the consequences of this bill.

         11                 Attorneys consulted by MERA consider

         12  this proposed legislation to be in conflict with

         13  existing law, governing fair trade.

         14                 MERA will continue to join others in

         15  the industry to contest this legislation, if passed.

         16                 Furthermore, it is our position that

         17  this legislation would inflict an undue burden on

         18  interstate commerce because consumers who live

         19  outside of New York City would be subject to the new

         20  regulations.

         21                 In closing, MERA and its members are

         22  highly sensitive to the noise issues, doing what we

         23  can to address them.

         24                 Our association has made statements

         25  in the past voicing our concern that citizens have a
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          2  right to peace and tranquility in residential areas,

          3  but we cannot forget that those same private

          4  citizens have a right to protect their property.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you very much for being there.

          7                 I was just curious about the

          8  relationship between MERA, and the Consumer

          9  Electronics Association. So, I guess the Consumer

         10  Electronics Association, I guess their members would

         11  provide the products that your retailers sell; would

         12  that be --

         13                 MR. SHEVELOFF: That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have any

         15  thoughts on sort of my compromise concept whereby we

         16  create sort of one standard for products that are

         17  released in New York City currently, people are not

         18  allowed to use certain kinds of audible car alarm

         19  devices or features, and, so, I would look to extend

         20  that to, you know, guys like you who sell and

         21  install.

         22                 MR. SHEVELOFF: I've always championed

         23  standards. What you're saying makes complete sense

         24  to me.

         25                 I'm a Connecticut resident. I had a
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          2  retail store in Connecticut where I was allowed to

          3  sell, for a period of time sell radar detectors, but

          4  they were illegal to use. It's a bit of a bizarre

          5  situation. It seemed like whatever is illegal for

          6  people to use should be illegal for the people who

          7  are selling it, installing it to sell it. It just

          8  seems to make sense to me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

         10  That's a courageous and refreshing position. And

         11  thank you for supporting the concept that everyone

         12  should be reading from the same page.

         13                 MR. SEHVELOFF: I will also say that

         14  what CEA said about installation standards, from my

         15  past experience as an installer, again, who

         16  installed numerous car alarms, often times for

         17  people who had them installed once improperly, the

         18  installation standards are, and I don't have any

         19  data for percentages, but the installation standards

         20  are a huge factor in false alarms that are

         21  disturbing your constituents.

         22                 Huge factor.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see. I see.

         24                 This might be funny or whatever, but

         25  I bought a used car last August, a Ford Crown
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          2  Victoria, and it had a little fob on it that I used

          3  to lock and unlock the door with.

          4                 Just about seven months after I had

          5  it, I closed the trunk and all of a sudden an alarm

          6  went off. And I'm thinking, who has a car alarm

          7  around here, and I'm thinking, it's my car. And, so,

          8  after seven months of, the alarm just woke up at

          9  some point. I wasn't aware that it had an alarm when

         10  I bought it, and I didn't really want the alarm. It

         11  was an old car anyway. So, now I discovered I had

         12  the alarm, and now when I depress it, and depress

         13  the thing, it like chirps and does all this other --

         14  it didn't do that for months. It just was sleeping

         15  for seven months and all of a sudden just kind of

         16  work up.

         17                 It's just kind of an alarm story. I

         18  just thought you would appreciate that. You know.

         19                 So, what happened?

         20                 MR. SHEVELOFF: There's a lot of

         21  possible explanations for that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. We'll talk

         23  after the hearing.

         24                 But, so now I have an alarm which I

         25  really don't want, or whatever, because obviously
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          2  it's not one of the good ones like you guys would

          3  install, who knows where it came from.

          4                 And, so, anyway, thank you for your

          5  testimony. Thank you for being here. I appreciate

          6  it.

          7                 MR. SHEVELOFF: Thank you for having

          8  me.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the folks

         10  from DEP are here as well, if you'd like to make

         11  yourself known to them as you endeavor to take a

         12  look at this. You know, maybe they can be in contact

         13  with you also.

         14                 We know who you are and as we go

         15  forward we'll keep you in the loop.

         16                 MR. SHEVELOFF: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 Okay. We have a couple of panels

         19  coming up. The next panel is Devin Cohen from

         20  Brooklyn, Community Board 6. CH Foreman of

         21  Baychester Quality of Life. Michael, looks like

         22  Infranco. Anthony Lopez, or Lodez, I can't really

         23  see; and H. Best.

         24                 I'll ask the panel to convene, but

         25  while they're getting seated at the table, I'll just
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          2  have to be excused for about a minute and a half.

          3  I'll be right back.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: H. Best. Anthony

          5  Lopez. Michael Infranco. CH Foreman, and you're

          6  Devin Cohen?

          7                 MR. COHEN: I am.

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, and Hector

          9  Lopez. Richard Tur. And Mr., or Miss Schulz.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all

         11  for coming. Thank you very much for your patience.

         12  The hour is late. You're very patient.

         13                 We appreciate your determination to

         14  sort of stay the course and be with us and give us

         15  the benefit of your views. We do deeply appreciate

         16  that.

         17                 Donna DeCostanzo will administer the

         18  oath that we require of all witnesses, and then you

         19  can proceed.

         20                 Why don't we do it from this side to

         21  that side? We'll go that way, once everybody is

         22  sworn in.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         25  right hand.
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          2                 In the testimony that you're about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth.

          5                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          8  much. I appreciate you being here, and please

          9  proceed. When anyone testifies you state your name

         10  for the record, and please proceed with your

         11  testimony.

         12                 MR. TUR: Hello. My name is Richard

         13  Tur. I'd like to thank the Council for this meeting.

         14                 I live in Astoria Queens. I am glad

         15  that there is a bill to stop the sale and

         16  installation of car alarms in New York City, but I

         17  am disappointed that we are not passing a bill to

         18  ban car alarms completely.

         19                 It's been a full year since this

         20  subject has been debated in City Hall.

         21                 Me and my family have had enough car

         22  alarms and I want them banned from New York City.

         23                 Where I live, car alarms go off at

         24  all hours of the day and night. It wakes me and my

         25  family up at night. It disturbs us at dinner, when
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          2  we're having a conversation or even watching

          3  television. It disturbs my work and my productivity,

          4  and it is ruining the quality of my life.

          5                 Where I live, calling 3-1-1 has no

          6  effect. I live next to a police station, and car

          7  alarms from the police officers' civilian cars go

          8  off all day and night. I have complained to them on

          9  the telephone and in person and I get no response.

         10                 Sometimes they hear their own car

         11  alarms going off and they ignore it.

         12                 In March, a car alarm sounded off for

         13  five straight days at all hours of the day and

         14  night.

         15                 In spite of my complaints to 3-1-1

         16  and the 114th Precinct, they took no action.

         17                 I decided to bring my entire family

         18  down to the police station in person and demand to

         19  speak to somebody in charge.

         20                 I spoke to a community affairs

         21  officer who finally told me that the car belonged to

         22  an officer who was on vacation.

         23                 He suggested that I call 9-1-1, the

         24  same number used for life and death emergencies, and

         25  request an NYPD emergency services unit truck to
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          2  come out.

          3                 I took his advice and two officers

          4  arrived. I explained the situation and they heard

          5  the alarm going off.

          6                 They took mercy on me and they

          7  finally did call for the ESU truck and they came out

          8  and they physically shut off the car alarm.

          9                 This is the same unit that's called

         10  on when there is a critical emergency, such as a

         11  terrorist attack.

         12                 My family and me had five sleepless

         13  nights because of this. The 9-1-1 emergency system

         14  had to be called on for action to be taken and that

         15  a special branch of the NYPD had to be called out

         16  for this.

         17                 It appalls me that this is the way it

         18  works in New York City.

         19                 Even in Moscow, Russia, they banned

         20  car alarms. In April I was in Russia for three

         21  weeks, and I heard no car alarms. One morning I woke

         22  up and I thought I heard one going off until I

         23  realized they were birds.

         24                 The same companies that make these

         25  noisy car alarms, such as Directed Electronics and
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          2  Audiovox, also make powerful car audio equipment,

          3  the boom cars that you can hear a block away. They

          4  don't care about people, community or qualities of

          5  life issues.

          6                 These executives from these companies

          7  are like a bunch of greasy slugs that come out of

          8  the mud, out of the rain, every time there's

          9  legislation against their useless products. They

         10  slither out to City Hall and tell you that car

         11  alarms are a good thing and that the prevent theft.

         12                 But they live in comfortable, lush

         13  green suburbs where they don't have to put up with

         14  that crap. They just want to make money and they

         15  have no shame.

         16                 Members of the Council, please pass

         17  this bill, and let's also work on a stronger bill

         18  that will completely ban car alarms. Millions of New

         19  Yorkers will sleep better at night. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

         21                 I also just want to say that once all

         22  five are finished giving your statements, we may

         23  have questions or whatever, so anyone who wishes to

         24  remain for that.

         25                 MR. COHEN: Right. Mr. Chairman, my
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          2  name is Devin Cohen, Chair of the Public Safety and

          3  Environmental Protection Committees of Brooklyn's

          4  Community Board 6.

          5                 I would like to begin by thanking the

          6  Committee for the opportunity to address an issue,

          7  which while it is not one of life and death,

          8  consistently affects the quality of life of all New

          9  Yorkers.

         10                 I bear greetings to you and to your

         11  Committee member, Council Member DeBlasio, who is

         12  our neighbor. I also want to thank our other

         13  neighbor, Council Member David Yassky, for having

         14  had a staff member brief my community board

         15  committee on Intro. 115 this past March, and I want

         16  to particularly take an opportunity to thank Council

         17  Member John Liu for his leadership on the issue, and

         18  for having personally visited our committee earlier

         19  this week to present to us on Intro. 81 to have some

         20  dialogue with us on the issues related to car alarms

         21  generally.

         22                 All of our car alarms have become a

         23  nuisance in New York City. They wake us and our

         24  children in the middle of the night. They interfere

         25  with the quiet enjoyment of our lives, and there is
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          2  mounting evidence that this excessive noise may

          3  impact our very health.

          4                 They often seem activated by the

          5  slightest provocation, and gone are the days when an

          6  alarm would sound only when a car was physically

          7  intruded upon. They seem rather to react to the

          8  vibrations of threatening weather, excessive

          9  traffic, slight jars and bumps.

         10                 In a City where our citizens have

         11  become hardened to the daily assaults of noise and

         12  crowds around us, audible car alarms seem hysterical

         13  by comparison.

         14                 As currently installed, they cannot

         15  suffer the ambient noise and jostling of our City.

         16                 Furthermore, they do not attract the

         17  attention of their owners, that their owners sought,

         18  and while they're intended to generate care and

         19  concern for the vehicles they're designed to

         20  protect, these have become the cars which cried

         21  wolf.

         22                 They sound needlessly so often that

         23  owners and neighbors do not look to the aid of the

         24  vehicles, they do not call police for the protection

         25  of their property. Instead when police are called at
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          2  all, it seems most often to be in connection with a

          3  complaint about noise.

          4                 In our City where most residents

          5  cannot park within earshot of their vehicles, it's

          6  hopeless to assume that audible alarms will attract

          7  the attention of their owners.

          8                 If the noise will engender apathy at

          9  best, and anger at worst from others hearing the

         10  alarm, then what positive effect do these audible

         11  alarms produce.

         12                 There are alternative technologies

         13  which have become available. Silent alarms,

         14  Lojack-type tracking devices and ignition cutoffs

         15  are all better alternatives.

         16                 I understand that there are alarms

         17  which will even page the owner when they are

         18  activated.

         19                 If audible alarms cannot be

         20  completely banned, certain audible alarms which

         21  react only to the physical entry of the vehicle are

         22  preferable to those which predominate today.

         23                 While we sympathized with certain car

         24  owners who may have an audible alarm as a condition

         25  of their insurance rate, we encourage similar
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          2  incentives and more for the use of silent alarms.

          3                 These alternatives will provide real

          4  protection of the vehicles and not the false

          5  security of a blaring audible alarm. Furthermore,

          6  they do not impose on their neighbors.

          7                 We also support stronger enforcement

          8  of the so-called tree-minute rule regarding

          9  ticketing of audible alarms, which sound

         10  unnecessarily for an extended time. While we

         11  recognize that this would require the use of limited

         12  police and traffic enforcement resources, we believe

         13  that it would be an incentive to those who now

         14  possess the outdated and ineffective audible alarms

         15  to replace these alarms with newer, more effective

         16  technology, and we believe that it would create a

         17  disincentive to those owners who hotrod their alarms

         18  at after market alarm shops. We would support

         19  budgeting for that enforcement to the extent that it

         20  could be available.

         21                 For all of these reasons, I'm pleased

         22  to report that Community Board 6, at its full board

         23  meeting last night, acting on the recommendation of

         24  my committee, voting overwhelmingly for the

         25  following resolution.
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          2                 Number one, expressing our support

          3  for Intro. 81, along with any reasonable language

          4  amendments which may come out of your conference

          5  committee in these hearings.

          6                 Number two, expressing our support

          7  for Council Member Moskowitz's resolution, which is

          8  expected to come out of the Council to the extent

          9  that it encourages incentives for silent and modern

         10  alarms and encourages the State Legislature's action

         11  thereon.

         12                 Three, in support of stronger

         13  enforcement of the existing three-minute rule, even

         14  if that time ends up being shortened as part of your

         15  conference process.

         16                 And, four, encouraging the State

         17  Legislature to take up the issue of car alarms on

         18  the State level, as you have done on the municipal

         19  level, including a view toward incentives for the

         20  ownership of silent alarm alternatives.

         21                 I wanted again to thank the Chair,

         22  and also to ask permission to revise and extend my

         23  remarks by giving you a clean copy of my written

         24  testimony when I get back to my office.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks.
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          2                 MR. COHEN: Sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          4                 MR. BEST: Good afternoon. My name is

          5  Hilary Best, and I'd like to say good afternoon to

          6  the Committee Chair, members and audience. I'm a

          7  resident of New York, born and raised, and became a

          8  motor vehicle owner quite some time ago.

          9                 Of course, once I became a vehicle

         10  owner, I was concerned about theft. At the time

         11  there was various car alarm devices available on the

         12  market. What I was concerned about is being able to

         13  hear my alarm when it went off and to be able to

         14  distinguish my alarm went it went off, because a lot

         15  of time it would be alarms going off and they all

         16  sound the same. So, I endeavored to install a very

         17  loud alarm system in my car.

         18                 Unfortunately, there were occasions

         19  when my very loud alarm went off I wasn't able to

         20  hear it. However, based on what I heard today, I'd

         21  like to add this information. First of all, I came

         22  up with an invention that when the alarm goes off it

         23  will notify the person by telephone. They can

         24  program a telephone number into the system, anywhere

         25  they are, to call the number wherever they will be,
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          2  so that they can notified that the alarm went off.

          3  Because the important thing is, not only having the

          4  alarm go off, but the person who installed it and

          5  intended for them to hear it, that they have

          6  notification that it has been activated.

          7                 So, what I'm seeking is either public

          8  or private funding so I could bring my invention to

          9  market.

         10                 On regard to the legislation that's

         11  being proposed, I'd like to bring this to your

         12  attention. From my experience, false alarms are

         13  really what is a problem, one of the contributing

         14  problems and noise factor regarding car alarms. And

         15  from my experience, false alarms, majority are

         16  caused by improper or poor installation.

         17                 Not only that, poor installation can

         18  also lead to electrical fires in vehicles, and maybe

         19  even the major source of electrical fires in

         20  vehicles.

         21                 So, with that being said, I would

         22  suggest not banning car alarms or audible alarms,

         23  but first making it mandatory that anyone who

         24  installs an alarm have certification that just like

         25  an air conditioner installer has certification,
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          2  anyone who does any kind of electrical job should

          3  have proper training so that whatever they install

          4  is installed properly.

          5                 So that is one of the things I think

          6  you should consider. Mandatory certification for

          7  after market installers.

          8                 Second of all, I would recommend

          9  banning future sales of car alarm devices that do

         10  not include a notification feature. Be it a pager,

         11  be it my telephone, which also includes pager, but

         12  there is a difference between my invention and

         13  regular pagers.  Regular pagers have a limitation on

         14  distance. If a person is inside of a building or

         15  something like that, the pager device being that

         16  it's RF, radio device frequency will not necessarily

         17  trigger the paging device. But still it's better

         18  than nothing at all, so I would suggest that the

         19  banning of sales, and installation devices, did not

         20  have a notification feature.

         21                 Again, LoJack, I believe which was an

         22  attempt to bypass my patent application came up with

         23  an early warning system, that if the car is moved

         24  then it notifies a person by telephone, et cetera.

         25                 As somebody indicated, one of the
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          2  purposes of an audible alarm is to protect the

          3  contents of the vehicle. So, it is important to have

          4  an alarm that activates and notifies the person when

          5  the alarm, the car is breeched, prior to being

          6  removed at the time that the breech occurs.

          7                 So, the point on that is that audible

          8  alarms do draw attention to a vehicle. The vehicle

          9  is being tampered with, it does draw attention. Even

         10  if after it draws attention, and the person

         11  considers it a nuisance, it does draw attention, so

         12  it does serve a legitimate purpose, having an

         13  audible alarm.

         14                 If you're walking down the street and

         15  an alarm goes off, just naturally by reflex you're

         16  going to look to see.

         17                 So, to sum, I would also state, by

         18  barring shock sensors, which it was referred to was

         19  vibration, okay? Because I don't really see the real

         20  purpose in having a shock sensor, okay?

         21                 Usually if somebody hit the window

         22  with something like that, their master window, that

         23  would be one of the purposes that the shock sensor

         24  would do.

         25                 Again, however, a lot of times that
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          2  because those shock sensors go off, and false

          3  alarms, is because they haven't been properly

          4  installed.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you. I appreciate you being here today.

          7                 MR. LOPEZ: Good afternoon. My name is

          8  Hector Lopez, and I live in the Bronx, and we have

          9  this problem, especially on my block, every day.

         10  There's a particular that anything sets it off, the

         11  bus going by, even the car comes by with those loud

         12  music, that sets it off. And the problem is that

         13  this individual has a very sensitive alarm in his

         14  car, plus it's extra loud because the horn that came

         15  with the car was changed to a louder horn.

         16                 It's one of those European-style

         17  horns that's very loud. And he has that connected to

         18  his alarm. So, both things are going off at the same

         19  time. That's very annoying.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Again, I'll save

         22  the questioning until the end. I just will make one

         23  comment now. The alarm that you speak of is illegal,

         24  and I would recommend that you go to your local

         25  Council member, whoever it is, and bring this
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          2  situation to his or her attention, and then your

          3  Council member can interact with the Police

          4  Department and demand that the Police Department

          5  take action against this illegal alarm. Because if

          6  someone is driving down the street, and just a noise

          7  at the car is making the alarm go off, that alarm is

          8  illegal as per current New York City law.

          9                 And, so, you don't need a law

         10  essentially right now to fix your problem. You can

         11  go to your local Council Member or to the police

         12  directly, and certainly going through your Council

         13  Member may be a more effective way to go. They can

         14  go to the Police Department and they can get

         15  enforcement against that alarm, because that alarm

         16  that's bothering you is illegal right now, because

         17  New York City law does not permit alarms that go off

         18  without the car actually being violated, okay?

         19                 I've sort of broken my rule just to

         20  make that statement because I didn't want to forget

         21  to tell you, but we're hearing from the last witness

         22  and the panel and then we might have questions for

         23  anyone.  Please.

         24                 MS. SCHULZ: Thanks. Can you hear me?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If you speak
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          2  right into the microphone.

          3                 MS. SCHULZ: I'm surprised I have a

          4  chance to speak. I think the most salient point I

          5  can make --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Excuse me.

          7                 MS. SCHULZ: Oh, Const Schulz, from

          8  Washington Heights, West 191 and Wadsworth,

          9  predominantly Hispanic neighborhood, which shares

         10  this fellow's experience in the Bronx.

         11                 I spoke to Chris Cook, who I really

         12  liked, your technician with the black beard who

         13  spoke on that group of technical panelists. He said

         14  he argues with his grandfather in New York, argues

         15  with his grandfather, a resident in New York, who is

         16  on your side of the question, and he agreed with me

         17  on one point, and I think it's a point that's also

         18  going to reverberate the last gentleman's comments.

         19                 Owners don't care. What they want is

         20  what was called that peace of mind. Someone spoke

         21  from one of the colleges and said that kind of

         22  overview sentiment, they buy it for peace of mind.

         23                 And there's no -- I had an

         24  experience, you brought an anecdote up and I will,

         25  too. In another city, though I think this is
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          2  comparable state of mind. An owner that has a dog

          3  that barks against anyone in proximity, there was no

          4  sense of the neighborhood, that only that they had

          5  peace of mind every time the dog barked. That meant

          6  that they felt safe. I don't know if these owners

          7  even have that much of consciousness or peace of

          8  mind. It may be more in the abstract, because I have

          9  contacted my 34th Precinct on a consistent basis, I

         10  even get to know some of these people by name and

         11  have some good feeling for them, but there is

         12  certainly, let alone the 9-1-1 reference, there is

         13  no concern for the police to prioritize this. And

         14  when they do, when I actually pull some strings and

         15  I get someone out there in a timely fashion, the

         16  wisdom that I recognize they have gained from these

         17  experiences is two-fold: The owner most likely does

         18  not live in the vicinity where the car has been

         19  parked, and indeed the license plate will not

         20  reflect where that person does live because they

         21  have registered it outside of New York City, because

         22  the rates are cheaper.

         23                 There is no sense of practical

         24  recourse.

         25                 I did give an opinion to the Mayor,
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          2  and I just lobbied your way as a thought, we have

          3  traffic police, people hired just to give tickets

          4  for traffic violations, and there has been happily,

          5  enough of a public consciousness of sound pollution.

          6  I wonder if we could identify a police sector just

          7  to enforce sound infringements.

          8                 Let me look at my notes just to

          9  randomly go.

         10                 One of the inhibiting factors that I

         11  wanted to add to all of those that I wanted to

         12  acknowledge with car alarm types, is that they

         13  cycle. Officers have to hear, they say. They can't

         14  hear over the phone when I call them, they won't

         15  stay around to hear if the alarm should be off at

         16  the moment that they do arrive, but these alarms, in

         17  contradistinction to some of the other experiences,

         18  are even more insidious, if you're trying to get

         19  sleep through the night, because they will cycle

         20  through silence where you think they have been

         21  turned off, and then they'll be back on at a random

         22  pace, which no one will be able to pick.

         23                 Just a cap, please. Those are my

         24  anecdotal penciled notes through this meeting. I'm

         25  just going to read off, I'm going to give these to

                                                            197

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  John Liu. I don't know how it may add to your

          3  paperwork. I won't impose them on you. But these are

          4  11 letters since the fall of 2000, Community Board

          5  12, rest assured you will diligently work on this

          6  concern, heard nothing from them.

          7                 Again, April 21st, community board

          8  12. Same issue. These are all car alarm issues.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd be happy to

         10  get those to John. You said you wanted me to get

         11  those to John?

         12                 MS. SCHULZ: I'm going to give them to

         13  -- I already spoke to Phil about that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 MS. SCHULZ: Commanding Officer of the

         16  33rd precinct, same issue. In April 2001. Same

         17  commanding officer in November, 2001. Mike

         18  Bloomberg, same issue with copies to Majority

         19  Leader, Public Advocate, and my Council member,

         20  December 2001. No responses to these. Gifford

         21  Miller, 2002. January. He referred me to a counsel

         22  who never got any effective comment. I hope it's not

         23  you. Are you Amy Litman?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

         25                 MS. SCHULZ: Maybe that's a man. I
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          2  don't know.

          3                 Again, Chief of Staff to Miguel

          4  Martinez, no response. I'm sorry, he's not involved

          5  today. He is my Councilperson in my district, is

          6  abominably affected by this. He may give you his

          7  vote but I don't see him participating. Again,

          8  Gifford Miller, May 4th, 2002, and then finally Eric

          9  Schneiderman, our State --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, let me say

         11  this. First of all, I thank you for all of your

         12  perspective that you brought forward on this issue.

         13  Something that is different now, the difference

         14  between June 2004 and June 2003 is that in the time

         15  since that last hearing there has been a real focus

         16  by the Administration on noise, to the extent that

         17  I've never seen any Administration focus on it

         18  before, and they have this comprehensive proposal

         19  which unfortunately doesn't really speak to car

         20  alarms in a significant way.

         21                 But that's the bad news. But the good

         22  news is that everybody is talking about noise

         23  pollution now. Everybody is talking about it. There

         24  were four editorials in the four major newspapers,

         25  they're all about noise yesterday. You know, the New
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          2  York City noise problem is on David Letterman. It's

          3  all over. And, so, this is a very hot topic, and

          4  those of us who either live in New York City, or

          5  representing districts in New York City, we know

          6  that the big noise maker in the City is car alarms.

          7  So, there is a real focus on noise, and this Council

          8  is going to make sure that car alarms are a real

          9  focus of anything that ultimately comes out in terms

         10  of the revision of the noise code. And, so, it's not

         11  an easy process certainly, but we are, you know,

         12  confident that we will be able to do something

         13  regarding car alarms. And whatever we do will be

         14  informed by some of the perspectives that you

         15  brought forward.

         16                 Please stay in touch with us as we

         17  continue down this track, and I thank you for your

         18  patience in coming before us.

         19                 And the gentleman before, you make

         20  sure you talk to your local Council member about

         21  that car alarm, because that car alarm is illegal,

         22  and if your own Council member can't take care of

         23  you, whoever it is, you call me, okay?

         24                 MR. TUR: I can call 3-1-1.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 3-1-1 is fine,
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          2  but you call your own Council member and you

          3  indicate that this car alarm is illegal, and I need

          4  the Police Department to enforce against this

          5  illegal alarm. They can do that for you.

          6                 MR. BEST: Could I just mention one

          7  thing? Again, just to reiterate that, again, the

          8  focus should be on, I believe a lot of the noise

          9  comes from illegal car alarms, and also poorly

         10  installed alarms. Improperly installed alarms.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You made that

         12  clear in your testimony, as have others, but it

         13  certainly bears repeating.

         14                 And as far as any kind of government

         15  or Council funding for any sort of private

         16  entrepreneurial effort, I don't -- you don't see

         17  that as like a realistic probability. There are, you

         18  know, funding sources and venture capitalists that

         19  will put money toward private endeavors they think

         20  have a great promise, and, you know, that's how

         21  entrepreneurs sort of bring their ideas to the

         22  marketplace, unless it's specific technology which

         23  the City is looking for, or whatever, like for waste

         24  management or something like that.

         25                 But thank you very much. I appreciate
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          2  it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: George Whitehead

          4  of Slope Sound. David Welsh, United Coalition of

          5  Block Associations. Janet O'Hare, for a quite

          6  Jackson Heights. James McLaughlin, the 84/85 Gardens

          7  Owners Corporation. And G Jochnowitz. We're calling

          8  everybody now. Paul Bargetto. Martin Wallace. Mary

          9  Elder. Robert Goldman. And Kay Dunham. Josefina

         10  Sanfelio. I hope I'm saying that right. Okay, thanks

         11  for your patience. Thanks for going the distance

         12  with us.

         13                 Donna DeCostanzo, Counsel to the

         14  Committee, will administer the oath, and then we'll

         15  hear from you each in turn before you speak. Make

         16  sure you identify yourself for the record.

         17                 MR. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         18  right hand.

         19                 In the testimony that you're about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'll start from

         24  this side. And make sure you state your name before

         25  you begin your testimony, and speak loudly and
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          2  directly into the microphone.

          3                 MS. DUNHAM: Good afternoon, Mr.

          4  Chair, and everyone in the room. Madam Corporation

          5  Counsel, my name is Kay Dunham and I represent Self.

          6  In the matter of Intro. No. 81, prohibiting the sale

          7  and installation of audible motor vehicle alarms,

          8  and Resolution number 365, calling upon New York

          9  State Legislature to amend insurance law to limit

         10  anti-theft device, discount to silence devices, I'm

         11  concerned about ways to protect the motorist from

         12  thefts.

         13                 One thought that I had would be

         14  dialing the police. The alarm would be able to dial

         15  the police, like one of the homeowner's theft alarm,

         16  making them children's proof. My kids on my block,

         17  they know how to set the alarm off, and sometimes,

         18  you know, we have to spend a little time with them,

         19  because they actually think it's funny.

         20                 Finding the motorist that's

         21  unconcerned, going away for a weekend, and leaving

         22  maybe a defective alarm, or not leaving the key with

         23  a friend, and we get it and quite naturally it's

         24  what we call a quality of life issue. You must go

         25  into 3-1-1. 3-1-1 will determine that it goes into
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          2  9-1-1, that's the way to do your complaint, and then

          3  9-1-1 will dispatch the police officer or file the

          4  complaint that we're getting too many environmental

          5  or quality of life issues noise complaints for

          6  automobile alarms.

          7                 We talked about leaving the alarm

          8  key.

          9                 One of the alarms that bothers me is

         10  that you did not touch the vehicle, but it talks to

         11  you. It says maybe leave me alone, don't touch me. I

         12  think that one is too sensitive. You're just

         13  passing, all you're doing is walking down the

         14  street, it starts, you know, it sets it off. I think

         15  that one is too sensitive. No one touched the

         16  vehicle. I think that one is too sensitive. I think

         17  we should adjust that one. It definitely should be

         18  adjusted.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  speak.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you for being here. Thank you for your patience.

         23                 Next witness. Make sure you state

         24  your name for the record. The light should be off.

         25                 MS. O'HARE: My name is Janet O'Hare.
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          2  I'm with the Coalition for a quiet Jackson Heights.

          3                 We're actually appalled to have to be

          4  here one year later and speaking to a very watered

          5  down version. A year ago when we came, we expected

          6  to be back in a few months of full Council, and that

          7  you would all be passing a really strong bill that

          8  would in fact ban alarms in these noises.

          9                 Intro. No.81 purporting to forbid

         10  other than manufacturers to install an audible

         11  alarm, will have no affect whatsoever on the noise

         12  levels in our community.

         13                 Do you think the police can possibly

         14  enforce such a useless piece of legislation?

         15                 How are the police to know whose

         16  alarm is installed before market, after market, last

         17  year or next year? This is a piece of unenforceable

         18  legislation.

         19                 I think we've had enough of that when

         20  it's come to noise.

         21                 Resolution No. 365 is even more

         22  ludicrous. A State Legislature that can't even pass

         23  a budget will only have time to divide the port

         24  before heading home. This is just your way of

         25  pretending to do something when pushing the onus
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          2  onto another legislative body.

          3                 There is so much talk about these

          4  great automobile discounts you get. I testified last

          5  year that I had called my -- I have a card, I called

          6  my insurance agent, asked how I got a discount for a

          7  car alarm. First of all, I didn't have the requisite

          8  insurance, so if I bought another $200 worth of

          9  insurance, and I installed an inaudible alarm, do

         10  you know how much money I would save in one year? I

         11  would save $3.60 in a whole entire year.

         12                 So, to say that people are going to

         13  be disturbed because they're going to lose their

         14  great discount is not true.

         15                 And the problem that we're actually

         16  facing is the alarms go off day and night, triggered

         17  by trucks, the elevated subway, a child ball,

         18  someone leaning against the vehicle, and the worst

         19  thing in the contemporary vehicles is the driver

         20  setting it off, as you heard today from even the

         21  industry sources, when they open and close their

         22  car, the alarms go off.

         23                 The noise is a constant intrusion

         24  into the private spaces of homes. Interrupting

         25  conversations, meals, study, and worst of all sleep.
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          2                 For most of us when sleep is

          3  interrupted the following day is wasted, and you've

          4  heard that a couple of times today.

          5                 Our local pastor reports that the car

          6  alarms are daily disruptive to the children in this

          7  school.

          8                 Guest speaker at a town hall meeting

          9  we had in Jackson Heights spoke on the negative

         10  affects of noise on our physical and psychological

         11  health.

         12                 Dr. Collagean, psychology professor

         13  at Fordham, stated that noise contributed to a

         14  litany of ailments, insomnia, fatigue, high blood

         15  pressure, sexual dysfunction. And audiologist Yale

         16  Brevdor stressed that hearing damage is cumulative

         17  over time, and it's affected by both the intensity

         18  and the duration of noise, the every day noise of

         19  car alarms helping it.

         20                 He stated that many inner ear

         21  problems are due totally to noise pollution.

         22                 Noise comes from many sources, but

         23  automobiles is the chief culprit.

         24                 The moving audible alarms from our

         25  City will be the healthiest thing that any City
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          2  Council has ever done. You, you're the members of

          3  the new progressive Council, don't let the speakers

          4  strong arm you. Pass Council Member Liu's and

          5  Moskowitz's original bills to ban audible car alarms

          6  now.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9                 Yes, sir.

         10                 MR. GOLDMAN: My name is Robert

         11  Goldman. I totally support everything said by the

         12  previous speaker. I'm extremely tired now because I

         13  was woken up at 3:00 in the morning, last night by a

         14  car alarm and I was woken up a second time last

         15  night by a car alarm.

         16                 I called 3-1-1, which I usually don't

         17  do, and I think one of the reasons that 3-1-1

         18  doesn't have more calls is because it's so futile to

         19  call them.

         20                 I called 3-1-1 because I new this

         21  hearing was taking place today, and I was talking to

         22  a service representative on 3-1-1, and the next

         23  thing I hear was there appears to be a receiver off

         24  the hook, please hang up and dial again, which I

         25  did.
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          2                 And I talked to a second service

          3  representative at 3-1-1, and he told me, there's

          4  nothing I can do to help you. There is absolutely no

          5  enforcement for the laws that currently exist. And

          6  car alarms are a problem on my block every single

          7  day, I hear ten or 20 of them going off, and I get

          8  woken up in the middle of the night, sometimes two,

          9  three, nights a week. That means when I go to work,

         10  my productivity is diminished, and in my line of

         11  work in the building trade, a hazardous condition is

         12  created.

         13                 I don't understand how the proposed

         14  bill, 81, is going to alleviate this condition at

         15  all. Can you explain how your bill will help me out?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I ask the

         17  questions, but after everyone speaks -- I ask

         18  questions of you, not vice versa.

         19                 Please continue.

         20                 MR. GOLDMAN: I went to Community

         21  Board 3, and I spoke at the public comment period,

         22  in a school auditorium that was nearly full, there

         23  were a lot of people there, and I asked them to

         24  support having the car alarms in New York City, and

         25  when I spoke the entire room erupted in applause.
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          2  The citizens of New York support a ban on car

          3  alarms. And the City Council represents the

          4  citizens. They don't represent the industry, and the

          5  industry was bringing up economic issues, which my

          6  productivity is diminished, that's an economic

          7  issue.

          8                 I don't understand why I have to pay

          9  for the refusal of the automotive industry to

         10  reconfigure the wiring in their cars for these

         11  electronic noises activated by motion sensors, can't

         12  be reconfigured so they can be able, without the

         13  other safety components of the car still working.

         14                 Basically that's all I have to say.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 MS. SANFELIU: Good day, and thank

         19  you. My name is Josefina Sanfeliu, and I have

         20  comments to make on sound and a separate issue which

         21  I would hope to bring up. I find on my block, on

         22  Park Slope, there are car alarms that trigger

         23  easily. They trigger so easily that motorcycles

         24  coming down and revving up and triggering them just

         25  by sound, which I don't think helps the motorcycle
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          2  rider, and which probably raises medical cost of

          3  hearing impairment.

          4                 There are also cars that have such

          5  extreme sounds inside the car that the windows

          6  vibrate. The very laden music, and they also trigger

          7  car alarms. I don't think that the passengers in

          8  that car with such excessive sound can have normal

          9  hearing, and can hear emergency vehicles. If you're

         10  causing that much noise inside your own car, I don't

         11  think that you can hear emergency vehicles.

         12                 I've also passed by many construction

         13  sites often outside, private contractors,

         14  apparently, outside of places that do expect safety

         15  conditions, such as hospitals. When they're doing

         16  construction outside of places where you would

         17  expect high standards of safe equipment, I've often

         18  seen guys with a jackhammer with no earmuffs or no

         19  earplugs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's actually

         21  not the issue of this hearing. We're talking about

         22  car alarms.

         23                 And particularly the resolution and

         24  the Intro which are before the Committee. So, we

         25  just want to restrict comments and testimony to the
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          2  issue that's before the Council today.

          3                 MS. SANFELIU: In which case, I would

          4  encourage a tracking device such as LoJack, instead

          5  of a car alarm, which is not adequate for New York

          6  based on our parking situation. People leave their

          7  -- these are relevant to car alarms. If I can't

          8  park my car on my street, I will park it two blocks

          9  away, where there is adequate parking, and I won't

         10  hear it, and that happens in front of my house.

         11                 People park two blocks away, and they

         12  have no idea if their car is being stolen, their

         13  alarm is useless and maybe a tracking device would

         14  basically, if the car is stolen, track the car,

         15  reduce their cars and allow people to sleep.

         16                 But I also understand that car alarms

         17  are triggered by passing motion, but by sound

         18  itself, of cars going by, boom cars passing by, and

         19  motorcycles, which are a sound issue. And thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         21                 I have some statements to make in

         22  response to some of the testimony that you heard, in

         23  response to your testimony to me, and one of the

         24  things that, you know, at least some of the problems

         25  that were described to me by you are currently

                                                            212

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  addressed by Local Law 110 of 1993 which is on the

          3  books right now, which if you were here earlier in

          4  the hearing we had a long discussion of it, in that

          5  the alarms that are causing the most problems are

          6  already illegal. The alarms that go off just by

          7  virtue of some of it being close to the car or

          8  vibration setting it off or noise setting it off,

          9  anything other than a direct penetration on the

         10  vehicle, those kind of alarms right now in New York

         11  City are illegal. So, in one sense, we don't need a

         12  law to make those alarms illegal, they're illegal

         13  right now, it's just a question of getting the

         14  police to enforce against these kinds of alarms

         15  which exists right now, and I doubt that they really

         16  do enforce against these types of alarms.

         17                 We had the representative from the

         18  top autotheft inspector for the Police Department,

         19  and it wasn't clear to me that he, himself, sort of

         20  understood which alarms were illegal and illegal in

         21  New York City. Which makes me wonder whether or not

         22  the police themselves on the street have an

         23  appreciation of what is and what is not an illegal

         24  car alarm.

         25                 And at a minimum I would expect
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          2  something to come out of this whole effort that's

          3  underway now to sort of revamp the City and make it

          4  quiet, and to do all these things. At a minimum I

          5  think it's very reasonable to expect that the City

          6  will endeavor to do more, you know, to do more

          7  thorough enforcement, or some level of enforcement,

          8  against alarms which have been illegal for 11 years.

          9                 It would be great to be able to go

         10  beyond that. But just getting enforcement against

         11  the type of alarms which are causing most of the

         12  problems now, seems to be within our grasp.

         13                 You know, beyond that, going after

         14  making it illegal to sell and install those alarms

         15  that are currently illegal in New York City would be

         16  an added thing.

         17                 Going to the extent where we're going

         18  to ban all car alarms in New York City, quite

         19  frankly, I don't see that for the near term for all

         20  of legal reasons that have been put forward, and you

         21  know, the Mayor's own year-long analysis of noise

         22  problems in New York City, and it was a very

         23  comprehensive proposal they put forward, and after

         24  months and months and months of all kinds of

         25  analysis, and, you know, they recognize car alarms
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          2  as a problem, but didn't have a concrete proposal,

          3  you know, to deal with it.

          4                 I don't mean that as a criticism. I

          5  mean that this is a very, very tricky problem. But

          6  just to recap, I mean something that this Council at

          7  a minimum will demand is much more aggressive

          8  enforcement, by alarms which are currently illegal,

          9  and that could really improve people's quality of

         10  life.

         11                 Because the type of alarms that

         12  you're hearing going on now on your block every

         13  night are not the factory installed alarms that, you

         14  know, that only sound when there is direct

         15  penetration of the vehicle. It's the ones that go up

         16  for no reason, for when a truck drives by, a garbage

         17  truck drives by, or vibrational noise.

         18                 And, so, again, I'm not going to

         19  belabor this, other than to thank you for your

         20  testimony.

         21                 And I think also, Ms. O'Hare, your

         22  testimony reveals something less than a thorough

         23  understanding of the laws that we currently have on

         24  the books, and what Intro. 81 purports to do.

         25                 The police would not be called upon
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          2  to make a determination whether a car was

          3  factory-installed alarm or not. That is certainly

          4  not the issue.

          5                 MS. O'HARE: Excuse me. There is a

          6  whole section in there about keeping records, both

          7  the owner of the vehicle, and the installer, keeping

          8  records for a whole bunch of years, and frankly, no

          9  one is going to check them.

         10                 My point is, and I'm not even sure

         11  the car alarms going off are not manufacturers'

         12  installed car alarms. I have no way of knowing when

         13  the local officer comes, he has no way of knowing if

         14  it's a manufacturer or not.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's not --

         16                 MS. O'HARE: No, it's not an issue at

         17  all because we're saying just ban the audible

         18  alarms. You've heard lots of testimony today and a

         19  year ago about a multitude of systems that are

         20  available. There is no reason that say for 500

         21  people that live on my block, have to be awakened at

         22  three in the morning. Because one person wants to

         23  protect his property. I mean that's a civil

         24  liberties that's being violated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I
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          2  completely understand that. Fortunately, there are

          3  laws right now, we have to deal with that. We have

          4  to get them better reports, and I think we want to

          5  do even better than that.

          6                 And, so, again, I have to at some

          7  point limit the amount of colloquy that goes on. I'm

          8  giving you folks a little bit of latitude because

          9  you had the perseverance to sort of stick it

         10  through, but, you know, the good news is that there

         11  are laws on the books right now that were they

         12  better enforced, and if people, you know,

         13  enforcement were taken against those people that

         14  have alarms that go off in the middle of the night,

         15  and a couple of nights in a row if they got tickets

         16  on their windshield for hundreds of dollars, I think

         17  it will be -- I think we have a much quieter system.

         18                 I will indulge you this one last

         19  comment. We'll do that and then we're going to

         20  break. Please.

         21                 MR. GOLDMAN: The laws on the books

         22  right now are not enforceable. There's an alarm that

         23  woke me up at 3:00 in the morning. How do you

         24  enforce the fact that it was an illegal alarm going

         25  off illegally. It's impossible.
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          2                 The thing went off in 15 seconds. An

          3  alarm clock doesn't go off for three minutes. An

          4  alarm clock wakes you up in the morning for a couple

          5  of seconds.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          7                 MR. GOLDMAN: It only takes a couple

          8  of seconds to get woken up in the middle of the

          9  night. This is impossible for a policeman to get

         10  there to enforce the illegality of that alarm.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is my

         12  contention. My contention is that the owners of

         13  these alarms, if given summonses -- if a cop sees

         14  this alarm go off, that a truck drove by and made it

         15  go off --

         16                 MR. GOLDMAN: I'm not talking about a

         17  truck going by. I'm talking about 3:00 in the

         18  morning.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand.

         20  I'm failing to connect here. I thank you very much

         21  for coming down. I thank you for your testimony. And

         22  there was written testimony that was submitted for

         23  the record by Kent Dellinger of Honda North America;

         24  Brian Rusa of General Motors; and a private citizen

         25  Bet Duing.
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          2                 Thank you very much for being here at

          3  the hearing, giving us the benefit of your views.

          4  This hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:35 p.m.)
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of June 2004.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

                                                            220

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

